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TITLE: 

 
 28 June 2010 
Annual Report and Accounts 2009/10 (Pre-Audit) 

REPORT 
OF: 

The Deputy Clerk and Treasurer (ITA) 

 Reasons for confidentiality (if confidential) 
 District Implications – All  
              
 

1.  Summary / Purpose of Report 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the 2009/10 Annual Report 

and Accounts (pre-audit) and draw attention to some key issues. 
The draft ITA Annual Report and Accounts are attached. The draft accounts 
are being considered by the ITA Standards and Audit Committee on 25 June 
and their comments will be reported to the ITA to be considered alongside 
this report. 
 

2.  Recommendations 
2.1  The ITA is recommended to: - 

a) Discuss and scrutinise the content of the accounts, taking into account 
the comments of Standards and Audit Committee; 

b) Approve the Statement of Accounts shown at the appendix to this report 
 on behalf of the ITA and authorise the Chair to certify the approval of 
 the accounts by the Committee; and 
c) To delegate authority to the Deputy Clerk and Treasurer to make any 

non-material  amendments to the accounts as are appropriate, subject to 
material changes being reported back to this committee for approval. 

 

Agenda Item 3
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3. Introduction / Background 
3.1 The Annual Accounts for 2009/10 have been prepared to comply with 

regulations. The accounts of such a large and diverse organisation as the ITA 
are by their nature technical and complex. The significant differences between 
how local authorities have to present their accounts to comply with accounting 
standards and what needs to be taken into account when setting the budget 
requirement and calculating the level of Levy adds to that complexity. A 
summary of key financial issues is provided in this report and is further described 
in the Explanatory Foreword to the accounts.  

3.2 The Statement of Accounts is subject to external audit by the Audit Commission.  
This audit is due to commence in July.  Any amendments that are made 
subsequent to audit, which are of a material nature, will be reported back to 
Committee for approval at the end of September.  The Chair of the Committee 
will need to sign the accounts to confirm their approval by the ITA.  
 

4. Implementation of 2009 ‘Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice’ 
(SORP) 

4.1 Over the years local authority accounting practice has been updated to 
harmonise with private sector practices. This process has continued for 2009/10 
and is reflected in the 2009 SORP.   
Significant changes to the presentation of local authority accounts were made for 
2006/07. These have been added to by changes brought about from the 
implementation of the 2009 SORP. The accounts now presented bring into line 
both the 2008/09 and 2009/10 figures to comply with current guidance. These 
changes result from the move to bring local authority accounting in line with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
The timetable for the implementation of IFRS for local authorities is 2010/11. 
However, the 2009/10 accounts will be restated on an IFRS basis and the 
opening balances for 1st April 2009 will be on an IFRS basis. 

4.2 Main Changes  
 The main change to the 2009 SORP affecting the ITA accounts relates to the 

treatment of the public and private partnership, this includes the relationship with 
TT2 for the New Tyne Crossing which complies with IFRIC 12. 
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5. Core Financial Statements 
5.1 Income and Expenditure Account  (I&E) 
 This account summarises the resources that have been generated and 

consumed in providing services and managing the Authority during the last year. 
It includes all day to day expenses and related income for the year. It also 
includes non cash items relating to depreciation and pensions and the real 
projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year. 

 However this account is out of line with the statutory provisions that specify the 
net expenditure of the Authority when setting its levy. In order to give a full 
presentation of financial performance, the I&E Account is reconciled to the 
relevant statutory provisions.  This is done through the Statement on Movement 
on the General Fund Balance.  
 

5.2 Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance 
 The General Fund Balance shows the Authority’s performance against the levy 

that is raised for the year. This takes into account contributions to reserves 
earmarked for future expenditure. 
 

 In summary the Income and Expenditure Account  for 2009/10 shows: 
 
 £’000 
Net Operating Expenditure 64,769 
Met by:  
Levy Income  (70,646) 
  
Net Surplus for the year (5,877) 
Reconciling Items 7,818 
Net Decrease in General Fund 
Balance 

1,941 
Made up of:  
-ITA 785 
-Tyne Tunnels  1,156  

 The reconciling items include adjustments for the capital financing costs that 
replace depreciation in the accounts and the transfer to earmarked reserves. 

 The Authority’s earmarked reserves stand at £12.87m and are shown in the 
balance sheet.  

5.3 Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 
 This statement brings together year on year changes to the ‘lower’ part of the 

balance sheet, and shows the aggregate increase in its net worth. This account 
reconciles the Income & Expenditure Account to the balance sheet. 
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5.4 Group Accounts  
 The accounts also include the group accounts which show entries for both ITA 

and Nexus, prepared under merger accounting rules. 
6. Further comments by the: 

• Clerk (if any); 
• Treasurer  
• The budget outturn for 2009/10 is lower than anticipated at revised 

estimates owing to a change in accounting policy and changes in 
financing of the New Tyne crossing 

• Legal Advisor (if any); 
• Director General (if any). 

7 Background Papers 
7.1 Final accounts working papers 
8 Contact Officer (s) 
8.1 Marilyn France  0191 277 7517 
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   Prepared by: Marilyn France   ITA Accountant     
      Eleanor Goodman  ITA Accountant     
      Paul Woods   ITA Treasurer 
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We are a joint authority consisting of members from the five Tyne and Wear district 
councils, established by the Local Government Act 1985.  From the 9th of February 2009 
under the Local Transport Act the former Passenger Transport Authority became the 
Integrated Transport Authority. 

We act as a strategic and policy making authority on local transport issues within Tyne 
and Wear, and have responsibility for the Tyne Tunnels and delivery of the New Tyne 
Crossing project.  

We comprise 16 elected members appointed by the five District Councils of Tyne and 
Wear.  

Improving quality of life is a general aim of national, regional and Tyne and Wear 
Local Transport Plan policy 

Improved accessibility, regeneration and renewal will help achieve this. National policy 
is directed towards urban renaissance, sustaining rural areas, to economic and 
environmental sustainability and to sustainable development. 

An integrated local transport strategy is set out and implemented through the Local 
Transport Plan (LTP). In Tyne and Wear, the LTP is prepared through a joint 
partnership comprising the ITA Nexus (the Public Transport Executive) and each of the 
five constituent districts of Tyne and Wear. 

In order to contribute effectively to the aspirations set out in the LTP for improving the 
quality of life for people in Tyne and Wear the ITA has adopted the following 
overarching objectives through its Policy Statement for 2007/08 to 2009/10: - 

���� Actively promoting the use of better public transport as a real alternative to travelling 
by car and thereby contributing to reducing road traffic congestion 

���� Reducing transport-related social exclusion 

���� Protecting, preserving and enhancing the natural and built environments 

���� Assisting in stimulating economic regeneration 

���� Economic efficiency 
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This has been a year of truly historic achievement for the Integrated Transport 
Authority, the fruits of which will be felt in Tyne and Wear for many years to come. 
 
In February 2010 Government confirmed a commitment to the Tyne and Wear Metro 
of £580 million – the largest single funding package ever announced for transport in 
North East England. 
 
This commitment means Nexus, which owns and manages Metro, will invest almost 
£400 million, including local contributions, modernising the existing network over the 
next 11 years. It also provides long-term revenue support for Metro for the first time 
in its history, worth £230 million over 9 years. 
 
Together with the continuing £265 million project to build a Second Tyne Tunnel this 
represents an unprecedented period of investment in our transport infrastructure, 
aimed at driving economic regeneration and tackling social inclusion. 
 
While we build for tomorrow I am delighted the high quality public transport we and 
our partners provide today is attracting people in greater numbers. 
 
The last year, 2009/10, was the first since 1980 in which every mode of public 
transport in Tyne and Wear – bus, Metro, local rail and the Shields Ferry – 
experienced growth in passenger numbers. There were almost 186 million journeys, 
and I was most pleased to see strong growth in child travel since the ITA introduced 
the £1 Child All Day ticket in September 2008. In its first full year this drove a 15.6% 
growth in child journeys by bus – encouraging travellers of the future to see public 
transport as a sustainable positive choice.  
 
The ITA also took the decision to freeze all Metro and Shields ferry fares in 2010, 
playing our role in helping the region’s economy emerge from recession by making 
travel affordable. 
 
Nexus increased Metro services to South Hylton in Sunderland to five trains an hour, 
and as part of our funding deal with Government selected a new company to operate 
Metro stations and trains on its behalf for seven to nine years from 1 April 2010. The 
successful concessionaire, DB Regio Tyne and Wear, has made significant 
commitments to improve customer service and quality. 
 
The ITA, meanwhile, will continue to set Metro fares, and has set up a new Metro 
Sub-Committee to oversee and scrutinise all aspects of this vital public service. 
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As we meet the challenge of providing strong and effective leadership and 
partnership working, other highlights include: - 
 
� Leading the development of the next Tyne and Wear Local Transport Plan 

� A successful outcome to the review of transport governance in the Tyne and 
Wear city region confirming a central role for the ITA 

� A review and revision of our key output measures to align them more to Local 
Area Agreements, Multi Area Agreements and our LTP targets 

� Developing a new vision for Transport in Tyne and Wear 

� Establishing new Working Groups on Equality and Diversity, Local Transport 
Plan and Bus Strategy 

� Together with Nexus, delivering on the Bus Strategy for Tyne and Wear, with 
extensive public engagement informing the Accessible Bus Network Design 
Project 

� Revising and developing Service Level Agreements between the ITA and 
Newcastle City Council, as the Lead Authority 

� The successful Smarter Choices programme to promote sustainable forms of 
travel 

 
New capital schemes, primarily implemented through Nexus include: - 
 
� The ongoing refurbishment of Sunderland station’s platforms in a £7m project  

� The completion of Haymarket Metro rebuilding, opened by Her Royal Highness, 
The Princess Royal, in March 2010 

� The opening of a new 95-space park-and-ride facility at Hebburn Metro secured 
by South Tyneside Council through a development agreement with a local house 
builder 

� The completion of work to fit digital CCTV to all Metro cars – and the first CCTV 
installed at bus shelters 

� The refurbishment of Blaydon and Wallsend bus stations in a combined 
programme worth £230,000 through the Bus Strategy 

 
Over the next year we will continue to press ahead with our plans, which will present 
significant opportunities for the ITA including: - 
 
� Developing and formulating the next Local Transport Plan 

� Considering and implementing recommendations from the Governance Review. 

� Involvement in the Tyne and Wear City Region 

� Refocusing our remit for Integrated Transport 

 

Work will start on a £15 million project to install new smart ticket machines at all 
Metro stations, and barriers to reduce fraud at 13 key destinations. This will form the 
foundation for the North East Smart Ticketing Initiative, one of the countries’ most 
exciting and ambitious public transport technology projects. 
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The ITA will work closely with all 12 local authorities in North East England, Nexus 
and transport operators, to develop a single unified smart ticketing technology for all 
public transport from the Tees Valley to the Scottish border, with applications far 
beyond just travel. 
 
The coming years will be challenging for public transport as Government spending 
comes under pressure, but we will continue to pursue schemes and options to help 
us improve transport across Tyne and Wear. 
 
Finally, I would like to pay tribute to the dedication showed by everyone who 
provides public transport in Tyne and Wear during the severe winter weather that 
struck the region in December and January 2010.  It was a period when many 
unsung heroes worked through the night and in appalling conditions to make sure 
that buses and Metro trains were available reliably for the people who depend on 
them – and for that we must all say thank you. 
 

 
 
Councillor David Wood 
Chair of Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority 
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I was formally appointed as Clerk to the Authority in September 2009 and looking 
back over the past year we have seen some significant changes. The ITA was 
established under legislation in February 2009 and we have grasped the opportunity 
and challenges presented.  
 
With the introduction of a new Government, budgets across the public sector are 
likely to be stretched, given the nature of the national budget deficit which will 
present the ITA and Nexus with significant challenges; however I am confident that 
we have the necessary financial plans in place to meet these challenges.  
 
We have established new Working Groups that help the ITA discharge its broader 
transport remit. These are: - 

� Local Transport Plan (LTP) Working Group 

� Equality and Diversity Working Group 

� Bus Strategy Working Group 

 
We have successfully concluded the Tyne and Wear City Region Transport 
Governance Review which gives the ITA a stronger voice in influencing and shaping 
Tyne and Wear City Region transport policy development. ITA officers have been 
closely involved with the Access to Tyne and Wear Transport Study, which will offer 
advice to Government on the transport challenges facing the City Region. ITA 
Officers based at Newcastle City Council have continued to provide valuable support 
and policy advice to Members ranging from financial advice to specific transport 
policy advice.  We finalised our ITA Officer Statement for our Members that set out 
our achievements over the last year and what we have planned for the coming year. 
 
The ITA is taking a lead on LTP3 development. We will have a draft of LTP3 ready 
to consult with partners, stakeholders and public in September 2010.  We are also 
revising and refreshing our ITA Policy Statement, replacing the previous passenger 
policy statement. This will also set out a transport vision for Tyne and Wear which 
we are taking forward as part of the LTP process.  
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We can already see some changes that will make a big difference to the travelling 
public. These projects include: - 

� Metro Reinvigoration 

� The redevelopment of Haymarket Metro station 

� Sunderland Station Improvements 

� The Second Tyne Tunnel 

 
ITA Officers will continue to provide the vital advice and support that our Members 
need to enable them to make decisions. We need to make sure that we continue to 
look forward, beyond the current financial challenges, to provide a transport system 
that is accessible and sustainable for all. 
 

 
 

Barry Rowland 
Clerk to the ITA 
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J Blackburn John Scott 
Statutory Vice 

Chair 
 

Robert Symonds Peter Wood   
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Introduction 

The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) manages its affairs to 
ensure the economic, efficient and effective use of its resources and to safeguard its 
assets.  This is vital if the ITA is to continue to play a leading role in the provision of 
quality public transport services throughout the Tyne & Wear area. 

This task is shared by all members and officers of the Authority.  The Treasurer has a 
particular role in ensuring sound financial stewardship. 

This statement of accounts has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain which requires that the 
accounts present a true and fair view of the position of the Authority.  Suitable 
accounting policies have been employed and where necessary prudent judgements 
and estimates were made which complied with the code. 

The purpose of this foreword is to provide the reader with: - 

���� An understanding of the accounting statements 

���� A review of the Authority's financial results in 2009/10 and its financial position 

���� An overview of activities and significant matters which occurred during the year 

 

The Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority's Finances 

The Authority's main source of income is the levy applied to the five constituent local 
authorities of the ITA based upon population.  This provides over 80% of its total 
income. The other main source of income is derived from the tolls from the Tyne 
Tunnels.  

The major item of ITA expenditure is a revenue grant to Nexus, the Passenger 
Transport Executive.  This supports concessionary travel, the Metro, other bus and 
rail services, bus infrastructure and the Tyne Ferry. 

The lead authority for the ITA is Newcastle City 
Council.  It provides administrative, engineering, 
financial, legal and other advisory services 
directly to the Authority. 

Further expenditure is incurred by the ITA on 
financing charges.  These relate to principal and 
interest payments on inherited debts, and grants 
to Nexus and the Tyne and Wear Districts.  The 
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running costs of the Authority also include additional superannuation contributions in 
respect of the ITA's obligations for the pensions of former Busways employees. 

At its meeting in November 2009 the ITA agreed to take the role of 
Lead Authority in developing and implementing the NESTI 
programme on behalf of the 12 Local Authorities in the North East.  
NESTI stands for North East Smart Ticketing Initiative, and over 
three years will establish a smart ticketing infrastructure covering 
the North East region consisting of smart ticket machines on buses 
and Metro stations and a smart back-office (called an ITSO HOPS) 
available for use by any participating local authority to make its 
Concessionary Travel scheme smart.  The programme will also 
explore further improvements including an ‘e-purse’ product which 
allows customers to pay as they travel using a smartcard, and 
interfaces to other smartcard schemes.  In its role as Lead Authority the ITA will 
administer £10 million of funding jointly contributed by the NESTI partners and will 
instruct Nexus, in its role as the body responsible for delivering ITA policy for public 
transport, to manage development of the programme. 

The Integrated Transport Authority also owns and operates the Tyne Tunnels, linking 
the A19 under the River Tyne between Howdon and Jarrow.  There is a tolled vehicle 
tunnel and tunnels for both pedestrians and cyclists.  The Tunnels are entirely self-
financing and are operated under a contract to a concessionaire company ‘TT2 Ltd’.  
The tunnels appear within the accounts as a trading function.  Tolls on vehicles are 
also used to fund the development of the New Tyne Crossing. 

The New Tyne Crossing is a major construction project that will provide a new tunnel 
alongside the existing one.  The new tunnel will convey two lines of southbound 
traffic, and the existing tunnel will be fully refurbished and altered to convey two lines 
of northbound traffic.  Both tunnels are expected to be completed and operational by�
the start of 2012.  Progress on the site is going well and the ITA started to make 
capital payments to the concessionaire towards the year end of £31.4m.  Further 
information is given in the New Tyne Crossing review on pages 17 to 22.  

Key Issues during 2009/10 

The ITA’s total spend was £9.678m over its original budget for the year after taking 
account of the new accounting arrangements for public private partnerships under the 
SORP 2009 and the use of revenue towards the funding of the new tunnel, within the 
year.  This reflected the impact of the ITA agreeing to take on responsibility for the 
£10m NESTI project and implementation of the accounting arrangements to give 
maximum flexibility in the development of this fund in future years. If the exceptional 
items are excluded the ITA’s spending is £0.3m less than the original budget due to 
the net gain on prudential borrowing and other savings in financing charges. 

Further developments on the New Tyne Crossing 

Construction began on site 22 April 2008, and will continue until 
the existing vehicle tunnel is refurbished and completed in 
December 2011.  

Most recently it won the Public Private Finance Award 2009 – 
Best Transport Initiative. 
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To manage the risk of the credit crunch the ITA has repaid debt of £74m in 2009/10 and 
has reduced the level of its investments; at 31 March the ITA had no external 
investments.  Short term investments of £45m are shown on the Balance sheet with the 
lead Authority Newcastle City Council, which is responsible for the treasury 
management of the ITA.  The average rate of interest paid on loans in the year was 
4.41%.  The average rate of interest received on investments throughout the year was 
4.40%. 

Reserves position  

The ITA’s reserves decreased by £0.78m to £4.29m which was due to the use of the 
reserves to limit the levy increase to 1.75% in 2009/10.  A further use of reserves 
income is planned in 2010/11 to reduce the levy on the Tyne & Wear districts from 
1.75% to 1.5%, and to provide additional resources to Nexus.  Tyne Tunnels 
balances also decreased during the year by £1.1m to £21.08m.  The prior period 
adjustment for changes in accounting for the New Tyne crossing reduced the Tyne 
Tunnel reserves by £2.93m. These reserves are being set aside to finance the New 
Tyne Crossing project. In addition a further contribution of £0.57m was made to the 
earmarked reserve from interest on investments, increasing it to £13.4m specifically 
held for Metro Re-invigoration. This was established in 2007/08 from the revenue 
support to Nexus and agreed by the ITA. 

The ITA accounts for the financial year 2009/10 are set out in section 2.  They 
consist of the following statements, along with notes to each: - 

Income & Expenditure (I&E) Account – the I&E account brings together the 
transactions relating to the Authority's functions, reports the net cost of its activities, 
and demonstrates its financing costs.  The statement reflects the actual financial 
performance of the Authority over the period. This then links to: - 

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance – this statement reconciles 
the I&E account with the General Fund balance.  The I&E account shows the actual 
spend of the Authority (plus depreciation charges); the Statement of Movement on the 
General Fund Balance ties this back to the actual position of the Authority, as the levy 
is raised on a different accounting basis 

Balance Sheet – this indicates the balances and reserves of the Authority at the 
financial year-end, and the level of long-term indebtedness.  It also shows a summary 
of the Authority's fixed assets, and any net current assets employed in its operations 

Statement of Total Recognised Gains & Losses – the statement relates to the 
purchase and sale of fixed assets, and brings together all the gains and losses of the 
Authority during the year 

Cash Flow Statement – this summarises the in and out flows of cash arising from 
transactions with third parties 

Notes to the Accounts – these provide further detail to the statements above in 
order to provide the reader with a fuller understanding of them 

Group Accounts – these provide the same information as above, but incorporate the 
Nexus accounts within the figures.  All subsidiaries have to be included within 
separate group accounts.  Notes also provide further detail where this has not been 
provided within the single entity accounts 
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1. Revenue Expenditure 
 
The ITA’s revenue expenditure in 2009/10 amounted to £87.06m and income amounted to 
£85.12m. The diagrams below indicate where income comes from and how it is spent: - 
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The following table provides a summary of actual spending against the revised budget 
for 2009/10 as reported to the 28 January 2010 meeting of the Tyne and Wear 
Integrated Transport Authority.  To provide a comparison across years, the table also 
shows actual spend for 2008/09: - 

�
�

 2008/09  2009/10  

  
Revised 
Budget 

Actual Variation 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 ITA Expenditure         

ITA Budget         
 - Expenses of the ITA  680 610 562 (48) 
 - Pensions 510 510 510           - 
 - Transport financing charges 3,040 2,930 2,966 36 

 - Interest on Reserve  (677)               - (567) (567) 

 - Interest on revenue balances (152) (122) (136) (14) 

 - Net gain on prudential borrowing  (1,663)               - (66) (66) 

 1,738 3,928 3,269 (659) 

     
Tyne Tunnels (9,198) (8,614) 1,156 9,770 

     
     

Revenue Support to Nexus 64,180 67,595 67,595 
                        

-   

Net Expenditure 56,720 62,909 72,020 9,111 

 
 
    

Less Levy on Tyne & Wear Councils (69,431) (70,646) (70,646) 
               

-   
     

Contribution to earmarked reserve 2,277 - 567 567 
     
Contribution to / (from) Reserves 10,434 7,737 (1,941) (9,678) 

     
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
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2. Analysis of Revenue Expenditure against Budget 
 

Budget Heading Budget 
£ 

Actual 
£ 

Difference 
£ 

Staffing & Charges for Servicing Officers 364,490 326,665 (37,825) 

Audit Fees 46,600 48,804 2,204 

Members allowances and expenses 88,200 86,200 (2,000) 

Accommodation Charges 7,670 8,714 1,044 

Subscriptions 40,040 40,036 (4) 

Conferences 3,570 3,187 (383) 

Travel expenses and subsistence 4,520 2,820 (1,700) 

IT Development 34,850 34,848 (2) 

Printing costs and consultancy 18,560 4,708 (13,852) 

Advertising 2,000 6,210 4,210 

Pension Deficiency Payments 510,000 510,000             -    

Financing Charges 2,929,520 2,966,015 36,495 

Interest on reserve                  -    

Interest on revenue balances                -    (66,636) (66,636) 

Net gain on prudential borrowing  (122,000) (135,822) (13,822) 

Total 3,928,020 3,835,750 (92,270) 

 
Overall, spending was within budget forecasts, with no major unexpected charges 
occurring during the year. Additional income from investments and reduced financing 
charges, resulted in a saving on the original budget for the year.   
 
 
3. Reserves Position 
 

Reserves at 31st March 2010 2008/09 2009/10 Difference 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Metro Re-invigoration Reserve (12,875) (13,441) (566) 

Integrated Transport Authority (4,053) (3,268) 785 

Tyne Tunnel (22,235) (21,079) 1,156 

Total (39,163) (42,094) 1,375 

 
The ITA reserves reduced during 2009/10 due to the planned use of reserves to limit 
the increase in the levy to 1.75%. Tunnel balances decreased owing to changes in 
accounting for private public partnerships and the funding from revenue of capital 
expenditure on the tunnels.  The following graph indicates the Authority’s reserves 
position for the last four years: - 
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4. Capital Expenditure 
 
During 2009/10, the tunnels spent £33.054m on capital works. These were primarily 
New Tyne Crossing construction costs: - 
 
Budget Heading Budget 

£’000 
Actual 
£’000 

 Difference 
£’000 

Environmental improvements  257 175  86 

Land 475 194  (281) 

Professional fees  1,161 1,226  65 

Capital contributions –New Tyne Crossing  31,400 31,400   

Cycle Infrastructure  38 38  - 

Lift replacement  30 -  (30) 

Pedestrian tunnel  25 21  (4) 

Total Capital Programme 33,386 33,054  (164) 

 
  
5. Pension Liabilities  
 
The ITA is a member of the Tyne & Wear Superannuation Fund and the assets and 
liabilities of the fund that may be attributed to the Authority are evaluated by the pension 
fund’s actuaries. The actuary has estimated for accounting purposes that the pension 
fund is currently in a deficit position and that the ITA’s share of the deficit is £16.580m 
as at 31 March 2010 (£13.841m as at 31 March 2009). A strategy has been agreed with 
the actuary for the deficit to be recovered over the next twelve years with regular tri-
annual revaluations of the fund due in 2010 with enhanced contributions likely. In line 

Reserves @ 31 March 2010
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with the approach taken by Newcastle City Council, the ITA has challenged the primary 
financial assumptions used by the actuaries in the estimation of the deficit position. The 
figures included in these financial statements should therefore be treated as draft.  
 
 
6. Changes in Accounting Policies & Practices 
 
A number of changes have been made to the accounts, with explanatory notes provided 
within the Accounts section. The changes are as follows: - 

Private Finance Initiative or Similar Contracts  

Under the 2009 SORP, any PFI or similar arrangements have to be accounted for under 
the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee 12.  The New Tyne 
crossing partnership is considered to be such an arrangement and it has resulted in 
changes to the presentation of the usage payments in the accounts for 2009/10 and 
previous years.  Further information is set out in the accounting policies on page 33. 

Disclosures  

Under the 2009 SORP there is no longer a requirement to include the following 
disclosures  

���� Expenditure on Publicity 

 

7. Metro Reinvigoration 
�

On 2 February 2010 the Government awarded Nexus around £580m to modernise and 
operate the Tyne and Wear Metro and secure the future of the system.   Nexus has 
entered into a contact for the Operating Concession - a contract to operate and maintain 
trains and stations and refurbish the Metro fleet on its behalf - with DB Regio Tyne and 
Wear Ltd for the next seven to nine years commencing on 1 April 2010.   

The capital grant from Government combined with local expenditure means that Nexus 
can invest almost £400m modernising the system over the next 11 years.  In the early 
years the money will allow Nexus to modernise 12 stations, install new escalators, 
install new lifts at key interchanges, renew more than 11km of track and 34 bridges, lay 
60,000 metres of new cabling and oversee the refurbishment of all 90 Metrocars. 

This is in addition to existing programmes to modernise Sunderland and Haymarket 
stations, to be completed this year, and the installation of new ticket machines at every 
station capable of selling ‘smart’ tickets backed by online purchase. 

Nexus will continue to own all Metro assets and set strict standards for train frequency, 
punctuality, cleanliness, information and security and fares will continue to be set, as 
now, by the Integrated Transport Authority.  Nexus will pay DB Regio Tyne and Wear 
Ltd agreed payments over the length of the contract, included in which is a bonus and 
penalty element based on its performance, particularly in relation to train operations, 
service quality and revenue protection. 

Around 400 people who worked for Nexus on Metro duties including train driving and 
control, train maintenance and station operation have transferred to the employment of 
DB Regio Tyne and Wear Ltd.  A further 270 people who also currently work on Metro 
have remained with Nexus in roles involved with managing the whole system including 
the operating concession, taking forward the modernisation programme and maintaining 
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infrastructure including tracks, communications, power supply, station buildings and 
equipment. 

 
 
8. Significant Issues from 2009/10 and into 2011/12 
 
The main issues facing the ITA for 2010/11 are: - 

���� Managing the regional fund for smart ticketing on behalf of North East Smart  
Ticketing Initiative, these monies are held as a provision on the balance sheet 

���� The need to actively manage investments and debt to minimise risk and deliver net 
financing costs within budget 

���� To work closely with Nexus to deliver a cash limited levy for 2011/12 to continue to 
improve the value for money for the districts and local taxpayers that fund the ITA 

o 
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The Tyne Tunnels 

 
The vehicle tunnel has been open for more than forty years, with traffic numbers 
increasing steadily since then.  In 2009/10, the traffic level was 11.6 million vehicles, 
corresponding to toll income of £13.18m after adjusting for prepayments (compared with 
£12.987m in 2008/09).  The toll levels were increased in January 2008 (to £1.20 for 
cars) with traffic flows largely levelling off over the last few years (see graphs below).  
The toll income is being used to fund both the running costs of the tunnels and the 
development of the New Tyne Crossing project.   

 
 

Traffic Flows 1974 to 2010
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Monthly Traffic Flows (2007/08 to 2009/10)
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�

The Tunnels were passed over to TT2 Limited in February 2008, who will run the 
operation for 30 years.  They are also managing the construction of the New Tyne 
Crossing, a second vehicle tunnel, which will be completed in early 2011.  

The in-year position against budget was as follows: - 
 

 Budget 
£’000 

Actual 
£’000 

Difference 
£’000 

Employees 35 35 - 
Pensions  588 588                  -   
Repairs & Maintenance                  -                    -                    -   
Premises 25 29 4 
Other expenses  23 27 4 
Supplies & Services 8 11 3 
Support Services 172 143 (29) 
NTC Community Fund  10 3 (8) 
Financing Charges 1,882 1,753 (129) 
Revenue Contribution to capital expenditure  21 21 
Usage Payments  2,826 5,659 2,833 
Toll Income (13,150) (13,180) (30) 
Other Income (13) (15) (2) 
 Interest on Tunnel Balances (1,020) (1,096) (76) 
Contribution To NESTI  7,178 7,178 

Total Tunnel Operating Costs (8,614) 1,156 9,770 

 
Capital expenditure on the tunnel has been financed from the contributions received 
from North East Councils towards the NESTI project and a provision has been set up in 
the balance sheet to reflect monies held for the NESTI project.  Tunnel income was 
lower than anticipated, due to lower level of traffic compared to the previous year. 
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Project Director’s Review of Progress in 2009/10 
 
The concession contract was signed on 23 November 2007 and the staff and 
operation of the Tyne Tunnels transferred to TT2 Ltd on 1 February 2008.  Financial 
year 2009/10 was the second full year of the contract which has a 30 year term. 
 
 
Operations 
 
The traffic volumes at the tunnel reduced by approximately 1.5% compared to year 
2008/09.  The reduction is less than that forecasted for budget purposes by TT2 Ltd 
early in 2009 and is broadly in line with the average figure for Tyne and Wear.  As in 
2007/08 the reduction is thought to be related to the current general economic 
conditions rather than any effect of the construction works.  A journey time 
monitoring system was installed by the TWITA prior to transfer to TT2 Ltd.  The 
system is providing real time accurate information which is readily available to tunnel 
users on the Tyne Tunnels web-site and via mobile phones.  It is allowing users to 
make informed decisions on when to time their cross river trips through the Tyne 
Tunnel.  It is encouraging that TT2 are managing to maintain total volume 
throughput in the morning and evening peaks at pre-construction levels – and at 
times slightly better. 
 
Staff at the Tyne Tunnels have expressed no difficulties with their new situation.  
TT2 Ltd have again negotiated an adjunct to the national pay settlement (second 
year running) which has been well received by the staff. 
 
The performance of TT2 is monitored on a daily basis by the TWITA’s Monitoring 
Officer who is based on site at the Tyne Tunnel.  There was no requirement to apply 
any penalty deductions.  TT2’s performance is classed as ‘VERY GOOD’ over the 
year.  
 
With the exception of the Control Room, reception and the maintenance garages, 
TT2 have temporarily relocated to the Howdon Yard during the building 
modification/improvements to the Tyne Tunnel offices.   
 
There has been no modification to the toll charge regime – cars £1.20, HGVs £1.50 
and motorcycles £0.20 with a 10% discount for permit account holders.  The next toll 
increase is not scheduled until the New Tyne Crossing is complete and users realise 
the benefit in service. 
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Construction 
 
Construction activity on the £260m scheme began in April 2008 when the site 
hoardings were erected.  Also a half mile stretch of the A19 in North Tyneside was 
de-trunked and drawn into the Tyne Tunnel site.  The Code of Construction Practice 
principles were approved by the two affected Local Authorities – North and South 
Tyneside Councils – in 2008 and sectional submissions continue to be submitted for 
approval as works continue. 
 
Significant progress has been made. The approach tunnel structures are nearly 
complete, the transition structures on both banks of the river are complete, the 
sprayed concrete lining tunnel sections (to avoid disturbance of major public utility 
apparatus) are nearing completion, construction of the new Howard Street Bridge is 
complete and open to traffic. The Jarrow junction works are complex and 
progressing satisfactorily with the new slip road nearing completion, the new slip 
road bridge completed, ventilation gallery & building nearing completion and the 
retaining walls near Epinay Walk at an advanced stage.   
 
Construction of the 4 immersed tube caissons at Walker were completed in June 
2009 and the dry dock was flooded in December 2009.  Dredging of the river took 

place November and December 2009 and the material 
delivered to Tyne Dock. The use of the dredging in this way 
was a joint initiative between the Port of Tyne and the main 
contractor Bouygues Travaux Publics UK Ltd to produce a cost 
effective and environmentally superior solution to dredging and 
disposal of material. It required approvals and consents from 
the environmental regulators and planning permission from 
South Tyneside Council.  The four caissons were floated out of 
the dock and immersed in the dredged trench during January 
to early March 2010.  The trench was backfilled in March 2010 
and rock armour protection placed in April 2010. 
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Environmental Monitoring 
 
The regime of river monitoring required by the Environment Agency was taken over 
from TWITA by the contractor in April 2008.  Real time information continues to be 
fed to the EA, the contractor and TWITA.  Fish tracking by Cefas is continuing as is 
fish counting/smolt trapping by the EA at Riding Mill. 

Other environmental monitoring has been installed in East Howdon and Jarrow by 
the main contractor to comply with the requirements of the Code of Construction 
Practice. 

No breaches of the pre-agreed water quality threshold criteria were recorded during 
the dredging and backfilling operations to the caissons. 
 
 
Communications 
 
The communication plan set out in the tender documentation was implemented over 
April – June 2008.  The Strategic Partnering Forum meets on a quarterly basis.  It is 
chaired by the Managing Director of TT2 Ltd and brings together the major 
stakeholders to address strategic and cross river issues.  The North and South 
Partnering fora, which are chaired by local elected representatives and consider 
local issues, have also continued to meet throughout 2009/10.  Information 
dissemination is effected by the media, newsletters, drop-in sessions at venues 
adjacent to the site, schools liaison, web-sites (construction and operator) and 
presentations.  A 24 hour phone line has been set up to receive call for assistance, 
information and complaints.  The communications effort is directed by a Strategic 
Communications Group.  In calendar year 2009, TT2 reported 255 complaints and 
215 compliments. 
 
In September 2009, TT2 engaged the local communities and major stakeholders in a 
series of events to garner input to the formulation of the submission to the Planning 
Authorities for reinstatement landscaping.  This was very well received by those who 
took part and over 300 comments were recorded.  The landscape plans have now 
been submitted for approval. During the preparation of the proposal to infill Tyne 
Dock the main contractor and TT2 engaged with the major Tyne fishery stakeholders 
as well as the regulators. Feedback from these parties suggests that the dredging 
did not affect the fishery in any detrimental manner. 
 
 
Programme 
 
The current key delivery dates are: - 
 
     Open New Tunnel/Close existing Tunnel    -  February 2011 
      
     Open existing Tunnel (New Tyne Crossing Complete)        -  December 2011 
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Land 
 
The entire site continues to be occupied by the constructors.  Two properties on 
Salem Street have suffered vandalism since the previous occupiers vacated them 
because of their close proximity to the works.  Both properties are owned by South 
Tyneside Council and had been sealed off using hoarding boards.  This protection 
has now been enhanced to prevent further attacks. 
 
Preparation is in hand to exercise the River Tyne (Tunnels) Order 2005 powers to 
acquire the sub-soil occupied by the new tunnel.  Arrangements for the hand-back of 
land are now being planned between the various parties. 
 
 
Acknowledgement 
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The Scrutiny Committee was established in 2003.  Its members are appointed 
annually by the five Districts in Tyne & Wear.  Each District appoints two Councillors. 
To ensure independent advice - and a clear separation between those doing the 
scrutiny and those being scrutinised - Councillors are not members of the Integrated 
Transport Authority. The Scrutiny Committee appoints its own Chair and Vice Chair 
at the first meeting of each municipal year and sets its own work programme. 

Membership of the Scrutiny Committee 2009/10 

     

David Forbes 
[Chairman] 
Sunderland 

Graeme Miller 
Sunderland 

Brian Richmond 
[Vice-Chairman] 
Gateshead 

Lawrence Hunter 
Newcastle 

Mike Lynch 
Newcastle 

   

 

David Charlton 
North Tyneside 

Julia Macauley 
North Tyneside 

Malcolm Graham  
Gateshead 

Bill Brady 
South Tyneside 

[Vacancy] 
South Tyneside 

Four meetings of the committee were held in 2009/10 at venues across Tyne & 
Wear; reflecting the shared interest of the five Districts involved.  

Unfortunately, attendance has been an issue this year for some Councillors.   

 

“… Giving Advice 
and Holding to 

Account …” 
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Work Programme June 2009 - April 2010 

To maximise the scrutiny contribution to policy debate the committee agreed, at the 
start of this year, to base its meetings on the five national ambitions for transport 
planning¹. This new approach also recognises the enhanced role of the ITA from The 
Transport Act 2008.  The committee’s new approach aims to deliver a sharper focus on 
key issues. Outcomes, against national priorities are as follows 

National Goal Work of the Scrutiny Committee 2009/10 

Support national economic 
competitiveness and growth 
by delivering reliable and 
efficient transport 
networks 

• Scrutinising the Tyne and Wear Traffic and Accident 
Data Unit.  TADU manages traffic flow data. 

• Understanding the contribution of the ITA to regional 
transport strategy, with a watching brief on the 
review of governance arrangements.  Also what was 
available under new ‘well-being’ powers. 

• Walking the site of the new Tyne Tunnel. 

• Monitoring representations being made to press the 
case for high speed rail to the North East. 

• Understanding national priority being given to 
improvements to A19 junctions. 

Reduce transport’s 
emissions of carbon dioxide 
and other greenhouse gases 
with the desired outcome of 
tackling climate change 

• Scrutinising ITA and Nexus Action Plans following 
their signing of the Nottingham Declaration on 
climate change. 

• Understanding investment in the Tyne Foot Tunnel, 
suggesting opportunities to promote its use as part 
of cycling and walking networks. 

Contribute to better safety, 
security and health and 
longer life expectancy by 
reducing the risk of death, 
injury or illness arising 
from transport and by 
promoting travel modes 
that are beneficial to 
health 

• Writing to the DVLA requesting more use of the tax 
disc reminder to promote safe driving. 

• Writing to Nexus to suggest a more formalised 
dialogue with local NHS Trusts. 

• Understand the work of TADU in supporting Road 
Safety officers across Tyne and Wear. 

• Commenting, as part of national review, on the 
safety of mobility scooters and powered wheel 
chairs. 

• Understanding the ITA’s approach to recording risk. 

Promoting greater equality 
of opportunity for all citizens 
with the desired outcome of 
achieving a fairer society 

• Promoting the Nexus ‘Bridge’ card developed to 
help those with limited mobility take a seat on local 
buses. 

• Understanding the take up/promotion of 
concessionary fares. 

• Commenting on consultation proposals on a 
developing vision for transport in Tyne and Wear. 

• Commenting on how the ITA is addressing 
equalities. 

Improving quality of life 
for transport users and 
non transport users and to 
promote a healthy natural 
environment 

• Understanding the North East Smart Ticketing 
initiative. 

• Commenting on public consultation proposals to 
support a review by the ITA of its subsidy to local 
bus services. 
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During the year, priority was given to embedding the Committee’s terms of reference 
which had been revised during 2008/9 and this was reflected in the Committee’s 
work programme for 2009/10.  
 
The Committee endorsed the annual report of the Interim Chief Internal Auditor for 
2008/9, the report having confirmed that the Authority’s risk management, control 
and governance processes were satisfactory as were the responses to individual 
audits undertaken during the year.  
 
The Committee welcomed and endorsed the Audit Commission’s Triennial review 
which had concluded that the Authority’s Internal Audit function was compliant with 
local government standards and that its contribution to the Authority’s control 
environment had improved compared with the previous year. These findings were 
taken into account when the Committee considered the draft Annual Governance 
Statement. The Committee also considered the Authority’s strategic risk register as 
well as the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter. 
 
The Committee noted that Deloitte had been appointed as the external auditor from 
2010/11 onwards, the Audit Commission continuing to undertake the role for 
2009/10. 
 
At each meeting, the Committee considered progress reports on the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit and External Audit along with the Authority’s revenue 
budget monitoring report which gave members an opportunity to forward views direct 
to the Authority. 
 
During the year the Committee also considered reports regarding the ethical 
framework, including a report back on the Standards for England annual assembly 
held in October 2009. The Committee also adopted criteria and procedures for 
determining dispensation requests in line with new Regulations and Standards for 
England guidance. In addition, the Committee considered new publications which 
had been issued by Standards for England, as well as a new training DVD. 
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Independent Members  

 

 

�
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The Authority's responsibilities 

The Authority is required: - 

���� To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 
affairs.  In this authority, that officer is the Treasurer 

���� To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources, 
and to safeguard its assets 

���� To approve the statement of accounts 

 

 

 

 

Signed ………………………………………………………….

Chair of Tyne & Wear Passenger Transport Authority 

Date:  28 June 2010 
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The Treasurer's responsibilities 

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the authority's statement of accounts 
which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASACC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in Great Britain ('the Code'), is required to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the 
year ended 31st March 2010 

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has: - 

���� Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently 

���� Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 

���� Complied with the Local Authority SORP  

The Treasurer has also: -  

���� Kept proper accounting records which were up to date 

���� Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities 

 

 

 

Treasurer's Certificate 

I hereby certify that the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2010, 
required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations are set out in the following pages. 
 
I further certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Authority at 31st March 2010 and its income and expenditure for the year 
ended 31st March 2010. 
        

 

 

 

Signed ………………………………………………………….

PV Woods, Treasurer and Deputy Clerk 

Date:  28 June 2010 
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1. General Principles 
 

 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) issues general 
guidance to authorities upon how their accounts should be compiled.  These accounts 
conform to the requirements of the Institute as issued in its 2009 Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP).  The accounting convention adopted is historic cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets.  The SORP 
is based on approved accounting standards, except where these conflict with specific 
statutory accounting requirements, so that the ITA’s accounts present fairly the 
financial position and transactions of the Authority.  

 
In addition these accounts are also compiled, as far as practicable, in accordance 
with the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP).  The original code was 
published in 2000 by CIPFA and it has been updated each year since.  BVACOP sets 
out ‘proper practice’ with regard to consistent financial reporting by local authorities. 
The purpose of this code is to ensure consistency and comparability in financial 
reporting between authorities. 

 
 

2. Accruals 
 
The financial statements, other than the cash flow statement, are prepared on an 
accruals basis. This means that transactions are reflected in the accounts of the 
period in which they take place, as opposed to the period in which payments are 
made or received.  
 
 
3. Detailed Accounting Policies 
 
a. Reserves 
 
The Integrated Transport Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future 
policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating 
amounts in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. When 
expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate 
service revenue account in that year to count against the Net Cost of Services in the 
Income and Expenditure Account. The reserve is then appropriated back into the 
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General Fund Balance statement so that there is no net charge against the levy for 
the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for tangible fixed 
assets and retirement benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council, 
these reserves are explained in the relevant policies below. 
 
b. Provisions  
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the ITA an obligation 
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but where the 
timing is uncertain.  In 2009/10 the ITA has a provision of £7.178m for the NESTI 
project equal to the contributions received by the 31 March 2010. 
 
c. Fixed Assets 
 
General 

The 2009/10 accounts have been compiled in accordance with CIPFA's Code of 
Practice, FRS 11 (Impairment of Fixed assets) and FRS 15 (Treatment of Tangible 
Fixed Assets). 
 
Arising from the Code of Practice: 

• Accounting for the use of fixed assets in service accounts is separate from their 
Financing Costs.  Revenue accounts are charged with a cost based upon the 
value of the assets; 

• All fixed assets owned by the Authority are capitalised and included in the balance 
sheet, in most cases at current values, except for infrastructure which is valued at 
historical cost; and 

• The impact of the Code is neutral on the Authority. 

 
The ITA’s fixed assets were revalued in 2008/09.  This was carried out by Newcastle 
City Council’s Property Services Department in accordance with the Statements of 
Asset Valuation Practice & Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors. 
 
De-minimis Levels 

For all Capital expenditure the de-minimis level is £10,000. 
 
Basis of Asset Valuations 

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets is 
capitalised on an accruals basis in the accounts.  Expenditure on fixed assets is 
capitalised, provided that either the fixed asset yields benefits to the Authority and the 
service it provides, or increases the value of the assets for more than one year. 
 
Fixed assets are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with 
the Statement of Asset Valuations Principles and Guidance Notes issued by the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  The ITA complies with FRS11 
‘Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill’ and FRS15 ‘Tangible Fixed Assets’.  Fixed 
assets are classified into groupings required by the 1993 Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting.  
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The closing balances at 31 March 2008 were stated as at 1 April on the following 
basis: 

• Operational land, property and other assets at current replacement costs; 

• Infrastructure Assets are valued at historical cost, net of depreciation where 
appropriate; 

• The tunnels are depreciated replacement cost. 

• The SORP requires detailed descriptions of the category ‘Non-operational Assets’ 
analysing them into investment properties, assets under construction or surplus 
assets held for disposal.  These assets are valued at market value apart from 
assets under construction which are at cost until brought into use. 

 
Revaluation of Assets 

Under CIPFA Code of Practice, all assets must be revalued every five years.  This 
work is carried out on behalf of the Authority by the Property Services Division of the 
lead authority.  The first such revaluation took place in 1999/00, with the most recent 
revaluation done during 2008/09.  These revaluations are detailed at Notes 11 and 12 
to the Core Financial statements. 
 
Charges to Revenue for Fixed Assets 

Charges to service revenue accounts are based on depreciation (where applicable). 
Previously, notional interest was also included, but this requirement has been 
removed from 2007/08 onwards.  Only actual interest payments and receipts go 
through the  I&E account. 
 
Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged on all Authority assets except freehold land.  The remaining 
useful life of these assets has been estimated by Newcastle City Council's Property 
Services Division and by the Engineers - and depreciation is applied on a straight line 
method over the remaining useful economic life.  This straight line method, which 
applies depreciation evenly over the life of the asset, is felt to more appropriately 
reflect the use of the assets rather than to apply higher charges in the earlier years 
which an alternative method would have done. 
 

Life Expectancy of Assets (in years) 

 Initial 2008/9 2009/10 

Freehold Land n/a n/a n/a 

Tyne Tunnels 120 74 73 

Infrastructure 40 34 33 

Other Properties n/a n/a n/a 
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Grants 

Where Grants and Contributions are received that are identifiable to capital 
expenditure where there is no asset the amounts are credited to the revenue account 
to net off the revenue expenditure funded from capital under  statute. 
 
Assets under Construction  

New assets that are incomplete are classified as ‘fixed assets under construction' and 
are shown in the balance sheet as non-operational assets.  No capital charge is made 
into revenue accounts until these assets become operational. 
 
Disposals 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the 
balance sheet is written off to the Income & Expenditure Account as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals are credited to the Income & 
Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the 
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.  Amounts in 
excess of £10,000 are classified as capital receipts and is credited to the Usable 
Capital Receipts Reserve and can be used for new capital investment. 
 
d. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but does not result in the creation of fixed assets, for example Local 
Transport Plan payments to other Authorities, has been charged as expenditure to 
the relevant service revenue account in the year. Where the Integrated Transport 
Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then 
reverses out the amounts charged in the Statement of Movement on the General 
Fund Balance so there is no impact on the levy. 
 
e. Interest Charges 
 
Interest on loans outstanding is accrued. Interest earned by the Authority is shown in 
the I&E Account.  Interest charges have been allocated on the basis of the average 
debt outstanding.  The interest rate for 2009/10 was 4.40% (4.56% for 2008/09).  
 
f. Redemption of Debt 
 
The Authority's revenue accounts have been charged with amounts which cover the 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) required by the Local Government Act 2003.  
This has been set at 4% of the Authority's opening credit ceiling for supported capital 
expenditure and existing debt, for capital expenditure from 2008/09 financed by 
prudential borrowing the MRP calculation is based on the equal annual instalment 
method. 
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g. Investments 
 
The investments shown on the Balance sheet at cash value plus accrued interest, 
include monies borrowed for the New Tyne Crossing project of £115m which has 
been invested externally until required by the concessionaire.  The earmarked 
reserve for the Metro Re-invigoration is also invested externally. 
  
h. Public Private Partnership (PPP) 
 
Private Public Partnerships are agreements to receive services and provide capital 
jointly with the private sector. 
 
The ITA accounts for the partnership in accordance with IFRS accounting treatment as 
set out in the 2009 SORP in a manner that is consistent with the adoption of IFRIC 12 
Service Concession Arrangements. In accordance with this all charges paid for these 
services are debited to the Income & Expenditure account based on a fair value of 
services provided  by the concessionaire until the asset becomes operational . The 
value of the asset will then be transferred to the Balance Sheet and the payments for 
services will be split between that required to finance the asset and accounted for 
similarly to a finance lease as a long-term creditor and the service element which will be 
charged to revenue. 
 
The assets transferred to the Concessionaire at the start of the contract ,vehicles, plant 
and equipment have to be re-instated on the balance  sheet under IFRIC 12 and the 
charges previously made to the accounts reversed. 
 
The capital contributions and environmental milestone payments in advance of the 
asset becoming operational are treated as prepayments on the Balance Sheet. 
 
i. Contingent Liabilities 
 
The liabilities are not recognised in the accounting statements but are disclosed by way 
of notes if there is a possible obligation which may require a payment or a transfer of 
economic benefit, but the amount has not been determined and the timing uncertain. 
 
j. Debtors and Creditors (Accruals) 
 
The costs of supplies and services, together with receipts in the form of sales, tolls, 
fees and charges, are accrued and accounted for in the period which they are 
consumed or received.  This is with the exception of utilities, which are paid purely on 
the basis of four quarters being paid annually.  
 
k. Pensions 
 
The ITA participates in a Local Government Pension Scheme which provides 
members with defined benefits relating to pay and service. 
 
The relevant fund is the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund administered by South 
Tyneside Metropolitan Borough Council, from whom a copy of the annual report may 
be obtained. The funds website may be visited at www.twpf.info. 
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The liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the ITA are included in the balance 
sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, 
and projections of projected earnings for current employees.  
 
The assets of the pension fund attributable to the ITA are included in the Balance Sheet 
at their fair value: 
 
���� quoted securities – current bid price 
���� unquoted securities – professional estimate 
���� unitised securities – current bid price 
���� property – market value 
 
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components: 
 
���� current service cost – the increase in liabilities as result of years of service earned 

this year, allocated in the Income and Expenditure Account to the revenue accounts 
of services for which the employees worked; 

���� past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions 
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the Net 
Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed 
Costs; 

���� interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year 
as they move one year closer to being paid, debited to Net Operating Expenditure in 
the Income and Expenditure Account; 

���� expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets 
attributable to the council, based on an average of the expected long-term return,  
credited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account 

���� gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the 
Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of 
benefits of employees, debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Income & 
Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed Costs; 

���� actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions, debited to the Statement of 
Total Recognised Gains and Losses; 

���� contributions paid to the pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the 
pension fund. 
 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance 
to be charged with the amount payable by the ITA to the pension fund in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Statement 
of Movement on the General Fund Balance this means that there are appropriations to 
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any 
amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year-end. 

Further details are provided in Note 28 to the core financial statements. 
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l. Other Accounting Policies 
 
Employee Costs 

The full cost of employees, including holidays, is charged to the accounts of the 
period within which the employees worked.  Following the transfer of the Tyne 
Tunnels to the concessionaire in 2008 the Integrated Transport Authority only has 
one employee.   
 
Employee costs in the I&E Account include the direct salaries and employer's 
contributions for National Insurance and contributions to the Local Government 
Superannuation Scheme in respect of that member of staff.  Officers of the Authority 
and other professional and technical support staff are primarily employed by the City 
of Newcastle upon Tyne.  Their costs are charged to the ITA, together with a 
proportion for overhead costs, on the basis of estimated time spent on the Authority's 
business by the staff involved.  
 
Overheads 

The costs of central support services e.g. financial and legal services have been 
allocated to the ITA on the basis of Service Level Agreements in accordance with the 
guidance given by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA). This is then allocated on estimated % to the Tyne tunnels, capital and the 
ITA. 
 
Value Added Tax  

VAT is included in income and expenditure accounts, whether of a capital or revenue 
nature, only to the extent that it is irrecoverable. 
 
Tyne Tunnel Income 

The majority of income from tolls is received on a cash basis, and so no accruals are 
necessary. However, prepayments on permit accounts are also received., the 
balance outstanding on the permit account has been accrued (see Note 1 to the core 
financial statements). 
 
m. Group Accounts 
 
The 2008 SORP requires the Authority to produce Group Accounts to include 
services provided to the Council Tax payers in the Tyne and Wear area by 
organisations other than the Authority itself but in which the Authority has an interest. 

Although there has been no definitive ruling by CIPFA or by the government in 
relation to Integrated Transport Authorities and Passenger Transport Executives, it is 
recognised that the accounts of Nexus fall within the definition of a subsidiary.  As 
such, group accounts have been prepared under merger accounting conventions, 
prepared on the basis of a full consolidation of the financial transactions and balances 
of the Authority and Nexus.  Nexus has been incorporated as a subsidiary, whereby 
the accounts of the two organisations are combined and any intra-group transactions 
are cancelled out. 

For the 2009/10 accounts, the Authority has fully complied with the requirements of 
the 2009 SORP, providing group figures for the 2009/10 accounts and comparators 
for 2008/09.  The group financial statements are prepared in accordance with the 
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policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies above, with the following 
additions and exceptions: 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The employees of Nexus are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, 
which is a defined benefits scheme (see note (k) above).  Accounting policies 
consistent with those of the Authority have been adopted, except that the appropriate 
discount rate for liabilities has been assessed as 5.5%.  In addition, there are no 
transactions between the Group Income and Expenditure Account and the Pensions 
Reserve in relation to movements in the net pensions liability for Nexus, such that the 
amounts debited and credited to the Account are reflected in the Group Income and 
Expenditure Reserve. 
 
Value Added Tax 
 
VAT paid by other group entities is accounted for in the Group Income and 
Expenditure Account to the extent that it is irrecoverable from HM Revenue and 
Customs. 
 
Tangible Fixed Assets 
 
Measurement 
Increases in the valuations of fixed assets held by Nexus are accounted for by 
matching credits to the Revaluation Reserve.  Impairments not charged to the Group 
I&E Account are written off to the Revaluation Reserve. 

Impairment 
Impairment losses on fixed assets held by group entities have been charged to the 
Group I&E Account where the loss takes the carrying amount of the relevant assets 
below their depreciated historical cost. 

Disposals 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the 
balance sheet is written off to the Income & Expenditure Account as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals are credited to the I&E Account as part 
of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at 
the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Charges to Income and Expenditure for Fixed Assets 
There are no transactions between the Group Income and Expenditure Account and 
the Capital Financing Reserve in relation to charges for fixed assets held by Nexus, 
such that the amounts debited and credited to the Account are initially reflected in the 
Group General Fund Reserve. However, a transfer is made from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Group General Fund Reserve for the difference between depreciation 
charged on the current value of fixed assets held by Nexus and what would have 
been the historical cost depreciation for the year.  
 
n. Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual charges to the Income & Expenditure Account for the interest payable are based 
on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
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instrument.  For most of the borrowings that the Integrated Transport Authority has, this 
means that the amount shown in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal 
repayable, plus accrued interest and a calculation to equally charge interest over 
multiple periods where interest rates is subject to stepped increases.   
 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and 
debited to net operating expenditure in the Income & Expenditure Account in the year of 
repurchase/settlement.  However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a 
restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing 
instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the 
amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Income and 
Expenditure Account is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective 
interest rate. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Income & Expenditure 
Account, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over 
future years.  The Integrated Transport Authority has a policy of spreading the gain/loss 
over the term that was remaining on the loan against which any premium was payable 
or discount receivable when it was repaid.  The reconciliation of amounts charged to the 
Income & Expenditure Account to the net charge required against the General Fund 
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.     
 
o. Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 

���� Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are 
not quoted in an active market; and 

���� Available for sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/ or do not 
have fixed or determinable payments.  In the case of the ITA, available for sale 
financial assets, e.g. quoted investments, are not held.  

 
Loans and Receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their 
amortised cost. Annual credits to the I&E Account for interest receivable are based on 
the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. For most of the loans that the Authority has made, this means that the 
amount shown in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal receivable and 
interest credited to the I&E Account is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past 
event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written 
down and a charge made to the Income & Expenditure Account. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are 
credited/debited to the I&E Account. 
 
p. Post Balance Sheet Events 
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Where a material post balance sheet event occurs, concerning conditions that did not 
apply at the balance sheet date, the nature of the event and its financial effect are 
disclosed in the accounts.   
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28

31 March 

2008

31 March 

2009

31 March 

2010
Inflation 3.7% 3.3% 3.8%
Rate of general increase in salaries 5.2% 4.8% 5.3%
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 3.7% 3.3% 3.8%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions 3.7% 3.3% 3.8%
Discount rate 6.8% 6.8% 5.5%

31 March 

2009

31 March 

2010
Males:
Scaling to above base table rates 145% 145%
Cohort improvement factors 80% 80%
Minimum underpin to improvement factors 1.25% 1.25%
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 65) 19.9 20.0
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 45) 22.1 22.2

Females:
Scaling to above base table rates 130% 130%
Cohort improvement factors 60% 60%
Minimum underpin to improvement factors 1.25% 1.25%
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 65) 22.8 22.9
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 45) 25.0 25.1

Asset split 

at 31 

March 

2008

Asset split 

at 31 

March 

2009

Asset split 

at 31 

March 

2010
Equities 63.6% 66.1% 67.8%
Property 10.6% 8.4% 7.4%
Government bonds 10.9% 10.2% 9.3%
Corporate bonds 8.9% 10.4% 11.4%
Cash/ other 6.0% 4.9% 4.1%
Total 100% 100.0% 100.0%

Long-term expected rate of return as at 31 March 7.0% 6.2% 7.3%

The approximate split of assets for the Fund as a whole (based on data supplied by the Fund Administering 

Authority) is shown in the table below. Also shown are the assumed rates of return adopted by the employer 

for the purposes of FRS17. 

The overall expected rate of return on Fund assets is a weighted average of the individual expected rates of 

return on each asset class.  

Assumptions - the latest actuarial valuation of Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority's 

liabilities took place as at 31 March 2007. The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified 

actuaries in updating the latest valuation of the Fund for FRS17 purposes were

Principal financial assumptions (% per annum)

Principal demographic assumptions

Expected Return on Assets

Notes to Core Financial Statements

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Funded Benefits

The disclosures below relate to the funded liabilities within the Tyne & Wear Pension Fund (the "Fund") which 

is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Integrated Transport Authority participates in the Fund 

which provides defined benefits, based on members final pensionable salary. In accordance with Financial 

Reporting Standard 17, Retirement Benefits (FRS17), disclosure of certain information concerning assets, 

liabilities, income & expenditure relating to pension schemes is required. 

Contributions for the accounting period ending 31st March 2011 - the employer's regular contributions to 

the Fund for the accounting period 31 March 2011 are estimated to be £0.84m. In addition, strain on the fund 

contributions may be required.

The disclosures below are included as a draft statement. In line with the approach taken by Newcastle City 

Council, the ITA is challenging the assumptions used in the preparation of the statement by the actuaries.
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Notes to Core Financial Statements

Value as at 

31 March 

2008

Value as 

at 31 

March 

2009

Value as 

at 31 

March 

2010
£m £m £m

Notional value of assets 18.27 15.44 21.69
Present value of liabilities 27.97 28.52 37.33
Net present asset/ (liability) (9.70)        (13.08)      (15.64)     

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Current service cost 0 0
Past service cost 0 0
Interest Cost 1.88 1.92
Expected return on assets (1.29)        (0.97)       
Expense recognised 0.59 0.95

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Opening present value of liabilities 27.97 28.52
Current service cost 0.00 0.00
Interest cost 1.88 1.92
Contributions by participants 0.00 0.00
Actuarial (gains)/ losses on liabilities * (0.81)        7.48
Net benefits paid out # (0.52)        (0.59)       
Past service cost 0.00 0.00
Closing present value of liabilities 28.52 37.33

* includes changes to the actuarial assumptions

Analysis of Income & Expenditure/ Profit & Loss Charge 

Changes to the Present Value of Liabilities during the Accounting Period

# consists of net cashflow out of the Fund in respect of the employer, excluding contributions and any death in 

service lump sums paid and including an approximate allowance for the expected cost of death in service lump 

sums of £0.0m for the period ending 31 March 2010

Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority employs a building block approach in determining the rate of 

return on Fund assets. Historical markets are studied and assets with higher volatility are assumed to generate 

higher returns consistent with widely accepted capital market principles. The assumed rate of return on each 

asset class is set out within this disclosure note. The overall expected rate of return on assets is then derived 

by aggregating the expected return for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the Fund at 31 

March 2010.  
Reconciliation of Funded Status to Balance Sheet
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Notes to Core Financial Statements

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Opening present value of assets 18.27 15.44
Expected return on assets 1.29 0.97
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on assets (4.65)        4.82
Contributions by the employer 1.05         1.05
Contributions by participants -           0.00
Net benefits paid out # (0.52)        (0.59)       
Closing present value of liabilities 15.44 21.69

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Expected return on assets 1.29 0.97
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on assets (4.65)        4.82
Actual return on assets (3.36)        5.79        

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Total actuarial gains/ (losses) (3.84)        (2.66)       
Total gain/ (loss) in STRGL (3.84)        (2.66)       

As at 31 

March 

2009

As at 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Fair value of assets 15.44 21.69
Present value of liabilities 28.52 37.33
Surplus/ (deficit) (13.08)      (15.64)     

In accordance with paragraph 77(o) of FRS17 (as revised), the assets for the current period and previous two 

periods are measured at current bid price. Asset values previously measured at mid-market value for periods 

ending 2008 and 2007 have been re-measured for this purpose. Asset values for periods ending 2006 and 

2005 are shown at mid-market value and have not been remeasured as permitted by FRS17 (as revised).

# consists of net cashflow out of the Fund in respect of the employer, excluding contributions and any death in 

service lump sums paid and including an approximate allowance for the expected cost of death in service lump 

sums of £0.00m for the period ending 31 March 2010
Actual return on Assets

Analysis of amount in STRGL*

History of asset values, present value of liabilities & surplus/ deficit

Changes to the Fair Value of Assets during the Accounting Period
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Notes to Core Financial Statements

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Experience gains/ (losses) on assets (4.65)        4.82        
Experience gains/ (losses) on liabilities # (0.22)        0.58        

28b

31 March 

2008

31 March 

2009

31 March 

2010
Inflation 3.7% 3.3% 3.8%
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 3.7% 3.3% 3.8%
Discount rate 6.8% 6.8% 5.5%

31 March 

2009

31 March 

2010
Males:
Scaling to above base table rates 145% 145%
Cohort improvement factors 80% 80%
Minimum underpin to improvement factors 1.25% 1.25%
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 65) 19.9 20.0
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 45) 22.1 22.2

Females:
Scaling to above base table rates 130% 130%
Cohort improvement factors 60% 60%
Minimum underpin to improvement factors 1.25% 1.25%
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 65) 22.8 22.9
Future lifetime from age 65 (currently aged 45) 25.0 25.1

Value as at 

31 March 

2008

Value as 

at 31 

March 

2009

Value as 

at 31 

March 

2010
£m £m £m

Present value of liabilities 0.77 0.76 0.94
Net present asset/ (liability) (0.77)        (0.76)        (0.94)       

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Interest Cost 0.04 0.05
Expense recognised 0.04 0.05

History of experience gains & losses

In accordance with paragraph 79 of FRS17 (as revised), unfunded liabilities are disclosed separately for 

periods beginning on or after 6 April 2007. The history of experience gain/ (loss) on liabilities shown has not 

been restated for periods 2007, 2006 and 2005 and includes the experience relating to unfunded liabilities.

# This item consists of gains/ (losses) in respect of liability experience only - and excludes any change in 

liabilities in respect of changes to the actuarial assumptions used.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

The disclosures below relate to unfunded pension arrangements established by Tyne & Wear Integrated 

Transport Authority. These are defined benefit arrangements based on members' final pensionable salary.

Contributions for the accounting period ending 31st March 2011 - the employer expects to pay £0.05m 

directly to beneficiaries.

Assumptions - the latest actuarial valuation of unfunded LGPS benefits took place as at 31 March 2007. The 
Principal financial assumptions (% per annum)

Principal demographic assumptions

Reconciliation of Funded Status to Balance Sheet

Analysis of Income & Expenditure/ Profit & Loss Charge 
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Notes to Core Financial Statements

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Opening present value of liabilities 0.77 0.76
Interest cost 0.05 0.05
Actuarial (gains)/ losses on liabilities * (0.01)        0.18        
Net benefits paid out (0.05)        (0.05)       
Closing present value of liabilities 0.76 0.94

* includes changes to the actuarial assumptions

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Total actuarial gains/ (losses) 0.01         (0.18)       
Total gain/ (loss) in STRGL 0.01         (0.18)       

As at 31 

March 

2009

As at 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Present value of liabilities 0.76 0.94
Surplus/ (deficit) (0.76)        0.94        

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£m £m

Experience gains/ (losses) # (0.01)        0.02

History of experience gains & losses

In accordance with paragraph 79 of FRS17 (as revised), unfunded liabilities are disclosed separately for 

periods beginning on or after 6 April 2007. This disclosure note presents the history of liabilities, and 

experience gain/ (loss) on liabilities, for periods ending 2009 and 2010. For periods ending 2007 and earlier 

unfunded liabilities are included in the disclosure note for funded benefits. 

# This item consists of gains/ (losses) in respect of liability experience only - and excludes any change in 

liabilities in respect of changes to the actuarial assumptions used.

Changes to the Present Value of Liabilities during the Accounting Period

Analysis of amount in STRGL*

History of asset values, present value of liabilities & surplus/ deficit

FRS17 requires the history to show this period plus the previous four periods if applicable. Information for 
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Notes to Core Financial Statements

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2009

Period 

ending 31 

March 

2010
£'000 £'000

&��	
�	��/	�
	
��	
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������ (3.83)        (2.84)       
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���&$+* (3.83)        (2.84)       
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2009-2010 (9.62)       
2008-2009 (6.78)        (6.78)       
2007-2008 (2.95)        (2.95)       
2006-2007 (0.94)        (0.94)       
2005-2006 (0.49)        (0.49)       
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The actuarial gains and losses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2009-2010 can be analysed in the 

following categories, measured as absolute amounts and as a percentage of assets or liabilities as at 31 March 2010 

and for the previous four years:
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Credit risk Gross Value Impairment 

value 

Net Value 

8?��� 8?��� 8?���

Deposits with Banks & financial institutions 0 0 0

Other Long term debtors 52,165 0 52,165

Debtors 7,889 0 7,889

60,054 0 60,054

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Income & Expenditure 

Account or Statement of Recognised Gains & Losses (STRGL). However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings 

and investments will be posted to the I&E Account and affect the General Fund pound for pound.  Movements in the fair value of fixed rate 

investments will be reflected in the STRGL.

Treasury Management officers, in conjunction with external advisers, continually monitor both the prevailing interest rates and market forecasts 

and adopt the following responses to a change of sentiment:

The ITA currently has £89m of debt in the form of LOBOs which equates to 61% of its net treasury management borrowing. LOBO agreements 

have periodic option dates on which lenders can opt to change the interest rate on a loan. One of the factors which might cause a lender to do 

this is fluctuations in market interest rates. If lenders exercise their option then the Authority can either repay the loan (at no extra cost) or agree 

to the change of interest rate for the remaining term of the loan or until the lender has the next option in the loan. If a change in the interest rate is 

agreed, this would impact on the amounts charged to the Income & Expenditure Account. Due to their structure, LOBOs can be obtained at lower 

interest rates than fixed rate long term borrowing, but carry an element of interest rate risk.

The Authority's Financial assets have been reviewed for impairment and the Authority is not aware of any factors which would suggest that the 

amounts will not be received in full.
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Interest risk - the authority is exposed to significant risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. 

Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the ITA  For instance a raise in interest rates would have the following effects:

borrowings at variable costs – the interest expense charged to the Income & Expenditure Account will rise                                                

borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall                                                                                  

investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Income & Expenditure Account will rise                                               

investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall

& ��1�

�!
����	0
���/��	�
����� ���	
���	�%�
������! 
� � 	���	�
����
��� ��5&4I��	���/����

There are a number of risks associated with financial instruments which the ITA is necessarily exposed to.  However the ITA monitors and seeks 

to manage these risks in order to minimise the potential for losses to occur.

In its dealings with financial instruments the Authority is exposed to a number of potential risks:                                                                                                         

credit risk – the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to meet their contractual obligations, causing a loss for 

the other party

liquidity risk – the possibility that a party will be unable to raise funds to meet its commitments associated with financial 

instruments

market risk – the possibility that the value of an instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates, market prices, 

foreign currency exchange rates etc

As part of its treasury management activities the ITA seeks to actively manage and control the risks associated with its money market and capital 

market transactions. The ITA regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be the prime criteria by which its treasury 

management activities are measured. Therefore the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities focuses on the risk implications for 

the organisation.

	�%��3���%
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Liquidity risk - as the ITA  has ready access to borrowings from the Public Works Loans Board, there is no significant risk that it will be unable 

to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. Instead the risk is that the authority will be bound to replenish a significant 

proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. Core financial statement note 20 (balance on long term borrowing and 

deferred liabilities) shows the maturity analysis of financial liabilities
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The table below shows the gross amounts due to the Authority from its financial assets, and the amounts which have been impaired due to likely 

uncollectibility. The net carrying value which is shown on the balance sheet represents the maximum credit risk to which the authority is exposed

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to the authority’s customers. Deposits are not 

made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the relevant criteria as adopted within the ITA’s Treasury Management Strategy. The 

ITA  has regard to the Department of Communities & Local Government Guidance on Local Government Investment and CIPFA’s Treasury 

Management Code. The Authority's investment priorities are the security of capital and the liquidity of its investments. The ITA will also aim to 

achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. Contractors are assessed taking into 

account their financial position and credit limits are set in accordance with internal ratings.
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Interest receivable on loans & receivables

Financial Liabilities - interest Payable 

Events happening between the balance sheet date and the date the accounts are authorised for issue are classed as post balance sheet events. 

Post balance sheet events which arose due to events happening before the balance sheet date have been incorporated into the financial 

statements. 

Any post balance sheet events which arose due to events happening after the 31st March 2010 would be classed as non-adjusting events, which 

would require disclosure but would not be included in the financial statements. There have been no such events requiring disclosure since the 

balance sheet date.

The accounts are authorised for issue on 28th June 2010. This is the date that the financial statements were approved by the Authority and 

signed by the Chair and the Deputy Clerk and Treasurer. 

The Authority seeks to ensure that this risk in any one year from its LOBO portfolio is minimised, by ensuring that option dates are evenly spread 

over future years. Of the £89m LOBO debt at 31 March 2010, £16m will be exposed to variable rates through lender options in 2010-2011 and 

£5m in 2011-2012. It should be noted, however, that although these loans become variable on particular dates they cease to be variable if the 

rate is not changed on those dates and a further fixed period of between 6 months and 5 years will apply depending on the terms of the loan.  

Recognised in Income & Expenditure account

The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss arising from movements in 

exchange rates.

Sensitivity to market interest rates - The ITA  is required to disclose the impact that a hypothetical change in market interest rates during the 

year would have had on its recognised gains and losses. It should be noted that had interest rates been higher the ITA would in practice have 

taken different decisions in relation to rescheduling of debt and to new borrowing and investments undertaken. The likely impact of such different 

decisions is not possible to quantify. However, the table below shows the extent to which the ITA's interest payable and interest receivable would 

have been different had market interest rates during the year been 1% higher than they actually were, calculated based on the actual new and 

variable loans and investments that the Authority held during the year.   

There is no impact on the Income and Expenditure account from how the ITA manages risks arising from financial instruments.
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Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority  
 

Date: 28 June 2010 
TITLE: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2009/10 
REPORT OF CLERK AND DEPUTY CLERK 
 Not Confidential / District Implications - All 
 

1.  Summary / Purpose of Report 
1.1 The ITA is required to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of its governance 

and internal control arrangements and include a statement to that effect within its Annual 
Report and Accounts. 

1.2 This statement is known as the “Annual Governance Statement” and will be considered 
in detail by the ITA Standards and Audit Committee on 25 June 2010, in accordance 
with the detailed report and appendices provided at Appendix 1. 

1.3 The statement summarises the operation of the governance and internal control 
environment during 2009/10, the extent to which it operated satisfactorily and highlights 
significant weaknesses and areas requiring improvement. 

1.4 The purpose of this report is: 
(a) 
 

To enable the ITA to consider the outcomes and implications of the review as detailed in 
Appendix 1.  Relevant outcomes of the Standards and Audit Committee meeting will be 
verbally outlined to the ITA on 28 June 2010; and  

(b) To seek formal approval of the Annual Governance Statement and Local Code of 
Corporate Governance. 

2.  Recommendations 
2.1 To approve the Annual Governance Statement provided in Appendix A of Appendix 1, 

for inclusion in the draft Annual Report and Accounts 2009/10. 
2.2 To note that the Annual Governance Statement must be up to date at the time of final 

publication which does not take place until the Accounts have been audited and finalised 
in September 2010.  The Annual Governance Statement will therefore be updated (if 
necessary) and submitted to this Committee for final consideration in September 2010. 

2.3 To approve the updated Local Code of Corporate Governance provided in Appendix B 
of Appendix 1, for publication on the ITA’s external website. 

3. Next Steps 

Agenda Item 4
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3.1 The AGS will be signed by the Chair of the ITA, Acting Clerk and Deputy Clerk (Section 
151 Officer) before being published with the Draft Accounts. 

4. Further comments by the: 
• Clerk (none); 
• Treasurer – the Treasurer has seen this report and is satisfied with its contents 
• Legal Advisor - The Legal Advisor to the ITA is a member of the Co-ordination 
Group and has been involved in the preparation of this report.  He has nothing to add 
• Director General (none). 

5. Contact Officer (s):   
Richard Elliott – Head of Strategy, Performance & Planning, Newcastle City Council  
Roger Gill – ITA Policy Manager, Newcastle City Council 

 

Page 92



Appendix 1 

Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority  
Standards and Audit Committee 
Date: 25 June 2010 
TITLE: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2009/10 
REPORT OF ITA OFFICER CO-ORDINATION GROUP 
 Not Confidential / District Implications - All 

            
  
 

1.  Summary / Purpose of Report 
1.1 ITA Officers submitted a report to Standards and Audit Committee in April 2010 on the 

requirement for the ITA to conduct an annual review of its governance and internal 
control arrangements and to produce an Annual Governance Statement 

1.2 Officers from the ITA Co-ordination Group (“Officer Group”) carried out the review on 
25 May 2010 – this report explains and presents the outcome.  

1.3 There are two key documents which Committee are asked to consider: 
(a) Appendix A - draft Annual Governance Statement 2009/10 (“AGS”); and 
(b) Appendix B – draft Local Code of Corporate Governance (“Local Code”). 

1.4 The role of this Committee, as per the relevant paragraphs of its Terms of Reference 
are: 
9.2 To review annually the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 

environment 
10.1 To consider and promote the Authority’s arrangements for corporate 

governance and agreeing necessary actions to ensure compliance with best 
practice 

10.6 To review the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement and to recommend 
its adoption to the Authority.  

2.  Recommendations 
2.1 To consider the draft Annual Governance Statement provided in Appendix A and 

Page 93



recommend it to the ITA for approval on 28 June 2010, as part of the draft Annual 
Report and Accounts 2009/10/ 

2.2 To note that the AGS must be up to date at the time of final publication which does 
not take place until the Accounts have been audited and finalised in September 2010.  
The AGS will therefore be updated (if necessary) and submitted to this Committee for 
final consideration in September 2010. 

2.3 To consider the updated Local Code of Corporate Governance provided in Appendix 
B and recommend it to the ITA for approval on 28 June 2010.  

3. Introduction / Background 
3.1 The ITA is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with 

the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.   

3.2 The ITA also has a duty1 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 
the way in which it exercises its functions, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

3.3 To discharge this responsibility, the ITA is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements (a Governance Framework) to: 
(a) Govern its affairs:  in relation to this, we have adopted a Local Code.  This is a 

public document which sets out the main elements of our governance framework, 
evidences our commitment to achieving good governance and demonstrates how 
we comply with the governance standards recommended by CIPFA2; and 

(b) Facilitate the effective exercise of our functions, including arrangements for 
managing risk:  in relation to this, we have a system of internal control designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. 

3.4 The ITA has a statutory duty to do the following on an annual basis : 
(a) Review and update the Local Code and demonstrate how we have complied with 

it in practice; 
(b) Conduct a review of the effectiveness of our governance framework, including the 

system of internal control; 
(c) Identify significant weaknesses and the actions that have taken place (or will take 

place) to address them; 
(d) Report these to the public in the AGS which is part of the Accounts. 

4. Review Process 

                                            
1 Local Government Act 1999 
2 CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. 
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4.1 The Officer Group met on 25 May 2010 to draw together their knowledge of the ITA’s 
activities during the 2009/10 financial year. Where available, the Officer Group drew 
upon the information sources highlighted in Section 4 of the AGS. 

4.2 The Local Code was also updated as part of this review, to reflect changes and 
improvements in the governance framework and to ensure there were no significant 
gaps in our arrangements that may need to be referenced in the AGS. 

4.3 The main parts of the review were: 
(a) Assurances provided by Internal Audit during the year:  All key officers and the 

Officer Group are informed of the outcomes of all audits completed during the year 
and any impact upon the ITA’s operations.  Key officers also receive a copy of all final 
reports. A summary of all Internal Audit work completed in the year is provided in the 
Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion of the Head of Audit and Strategic Risk 
which is included on this agenda.  As part of this report the effectiveness of Internal 
Audit and its compliance with CIPFA Code for Internal Audit is considered. 

(b) Assurances provided by External Audit (Audit Commission) during the year:  
officers attend regularly monthly meetings with the external auditors which enables 
continuing feedback.  The “Value for Money Conclusion” is an important source of 
formal information arising from the external auditors and this will not be available until 
later in the year.  This will be taken into account before the AGS is finalised in 
September. 

(c) Local Transport Plan Partnership:  a review of the main governance and internal 
control arrangements through an assurance statement. 

(d) TT2 Ltd: there is a governance structure in place which provides management, 
contract monitoring and assurance in relation to the operation of the project 
agreement. The New Tyne Crossing Project Director has considered TT2 Ltd’s annual 
report and is satisfied that this provides the necessary assurances. 

(e) Nexus:  consideration of their Annual Governance Statement.  The Officer Group has 
satisfied itself that the Nexus Annual Governance Statement provides the ITA with an 
appropriate level of assurance since: 
(i) There is external auditing of Nexus accounts; and 
(ii) There is senior ITA officer representation on Nexus Executive Board. 

(f) Newcastle City Council’s Draft Annual Governance Statement:  the ITA uses and 
relies upon the governance and internal control arrangements of the lead authority 
and therefore, if there are material issues within this framework, it is relevant for the 
ITA to take these into account. 

(g) ITA Strategic Risk Register:  officers considered risks set out in the Strategic Risk 
register. 

(h) Views of the Officer Group:  the group is represented by policy and management, 
finance, legal, internal audit, risk management, project management and democratic / 
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member services, all working on behalf of the ITA. 
4.5 Committee is asked to note that Paragraph 9.3 of its Terms of Reference require it to 

carry out an annual self-assessment of its effectiveness. This has not been completed 
yet, however this should be completed prior to agreeing the final AGS in September 
2010. This would be one of the sources of assurance relevant to the review.   

5. Conclusions of the Review  
5.1 The annual review must consider whether any of the following concerns have been 

identified and should be  included in the AGS : 
(a) Significant weaknesses (Section 5 of the AGS):  where there are or have been 

significant gaps, where we have experienced a serious incident from a failure in our 
arrangements or where there was a systemic weakness in our arrangements during 
the majority of the year under review.   

(b) Significant improvements needed (Section 6 of the AGS):  where there are essential 
parts of our arrangements which, whilst not ‘weaknesses’, need significant 
improvement and/or have not been working as they should during the year under 
review. 

5.2 There are criteria provided by CIPFA which guide us on what to include as a 
“significant weakness”.  These are provided in Appendix C for information.  The 
“significant improvement” section is not mandatory – we do this to ensure 
transparency, focus and continuous improvement in our arrangements, even though 
they fall below the materiality thresholds recommended by CIPFA. 

5.3 Significant weaknesses: 
 There are no areas of significant weakness that have been identified in the review in 

2009/10. 
5.4 Significant improvements needed: 
 Business Continuity, Planning and Testing:  this is linked to the Lead Authority’s 

arrangements - We continue to make progress with the development of business 
continuity planning across the organisation but this has been slower than expected 
as a result of needing to take account of major organisational changes.  Particular 
work will be needed on the training and validation of plans to ensure they are fit for 
purpose and owned by the services in question.  However, due to a change in 
personnel the delivery of this work may be affected. It will be important that during 
the transition momentum is not lost and managers continue to view this work as 
important 

5.5 Items Removed 
 The following items were included in last year’s AGS (as ones where significant 

improvements were required) and have now been resolved or are no longer 
considered relevant for inclusion: 
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Information 
Governance  

In 2009/10 work to improve information security, particularly 
the secure disposal of office waste and facilities to encrypt 
high priority mobile devices and e-mails, was completed and in 
place for the majority of the year. 

 

Scrutiny 
Processes  
 

 To strengthen the work programme, the Committee agreed 
in 2009/10 to adopt a theme-based approach to its work 
focussing on the five goals in Delivering a Sustainable 
Transport System (the national transport ambitions). Linking 
the work programme to key national ambitions ensures that 
the Committee is able to maximise its influence on ITA policy 
making and to hold to account those delivering decision 
making locally. The effectiveness of the Committee’s more 
robust approach was supported by the ITA at its meeting on 
24th September, 2009 when considering if the membership 
should be reviewed. 

  

Action Planning 
 

 Progress in the Lead Authority’s arrangements for action 
planning continued in 2009/10, particularly improvements to 
the Council’s corporate and service planning process. Not 
only are all new plans outcomes focused and closely aligned 
to the Corporate Plan and therefore the Sustainable 
Community Strategy, but also a number of unnecessary 
layers of planning have been removed. These previously 
resulted in wasted effort and diluted management attention 
on progress against the real action plans. Actions requiring 
input from more than one part of the Council or from both 
Council and partners are clearly identified. Improvements to 
the Lead Authority’s approach to programme and project 
management also includes specific guidance on how to 
structure action plans. 

  

Standards and 
Audit Committee  Terms of Reference of the Standards and Audit Committee 

have been embedded and the work programme has been 
established and implemented. 

  

    
6. Monitoring 
 The ITA Officer Co-ordination Group will monitor progress in addressing the issues 

highlighted in Paragraph 5 and provide a monitoring report to this committee in 
December 2010. 

7. Next Steps 
6.1 The ITA will consider and approve the AGS, as recommended by this Committee, on 

28 June 2010. 
6.2 The AGS will be signed by the Chair of the ITA, Clerk and Deputy Clerk (Section 151 
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Officer) before being published with the Draft Accounts. 
6.3 The AGS must be up to date when the Final Accounts are published – this does not 

take place until September 2010, following external auditing of the Draft Accounts.  In 
addition, the AGS is subject to relevant assurance sources not available at drafting, 
such as the Annual Value for Money Conclusion.  The AGS will therefore be reviewed 
at that time to ensure that any relevant issues highlighted during that period are taken 
into account. 

6.4 The final AGS will then need to be considered and approved by this Committee before 
it receives final approval from the ITA in September 2010. 

7. Further comments by the: 
• Clerk (none); 
• Treasurer –  
• Legal Advisor The Legal Advisor to the ITA is a member of the Co-ordination 

Group and has been involved in the preparation of this report.  He has nothing to 
add; 

• Director General (none). 
8. Background Papers 
8.1 (a) Report to ITA Standards and Audit Committee “Annual Governance Review 

2008/09” dated 14 April 2010. 
9. Contact Officer (s):   

Richard Elliott – Head of Strategy, Planning & Performance, Newcastle City Council 
0191 277 7669 
Roger Gill – ITA Policy Manager – 0191 211 4805 
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Appendix A 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2009/10 
 

SECTION 1:  SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 
The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) is responsible for ensuring that 
its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that 
public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  The ITA also has a duty under the Local Government Act 
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. The ITA also has a general power of promoting well-being within its area 
that was introduced by the Local Transport Act 2008. 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the ITA is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements (known as a Governance Framework) for: 
(c) the governance of our affairs and  
(d) facilitating the effective exercise of our functions, including arrangements for the 

management of risk. 
In relation to (i) we have adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance (“Local 
Code”), which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy is available on our website 
at www.twita.gov.uk. 
The Local Code evidences our commitment to achieving good governance and 
demonstrates how we comply with the governance standards recommended by CIPFA.   
It has been updated and approved as part of this review. 
In relation to (ii) the ITA has put in place a system of internal control designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to: 
(a) identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of our policies, aims and 

objectives; and 
(b) to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be 

realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
SECTION 2:  THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

Page 99



In addition to the above, the ITA’s Governance Framework comprises the systems and 
processes, culture and values, through which the ITA is directed and controlled and its 
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It 
enables the ITA to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.  
 
The governance framework has been in place at the ITA for the year ended 31 March 
2010 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. 
 
This Annual Governance Statement explains how we have complied with the Local 
Code and also meets the requirements of Regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 
Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of a “statement on internal control”. 
SECTION 3:  THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
The main features our Governance Framework are described in our Local Code and are 
summarised below. 
CORE PRINCIPLE 1:  FOCUSSING ON OUR PURPOSE AND OUTCOMES FOR 
RESIDENTS 

Identifying and communicating the ITA’s vision of its purpose and intended 
outcomes for residents and service users 

The ITA’s priorities are set out in the Passenger Transport Policy Statement, published 
every three years. This sets out the ITA’s priorities and targets for action in the coming 
years and records its key achievements in the preceding year providing the context for 
service delivery throughout the period. 
The Passenger Transport Policy Statement is reviewed every three years, with ongoing 
monitoring provided to members twice a year. We are currently in the process of 
reviewing, refreshing and developing a new vision and high level objectives for the ITA 
which will see the Passenger Policy Statement replaced. We are moving from a 
passenger transport focused approach to a fully integrated approach. We will be 
consulting with Members, residents and stakeholders on our draft vision and objectives 
over the summer and autumn of 2010. 
There is a policy work programme enabling us to secure effective and forward looking 
decision making. 
The ITA has produced a short summary outlining its vision and new direction of travel, 
explaining the progress of the former PTA into becoming the ITA.  

Reviewing the ITA’s vision and the implications for its governance arrangements 
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We are assisted by the work of our internal and external auditors, in helping to identify 
strengths and weaknesses in our performance, governance and internal control. 
The Passenger Transport Policy Statement was reviewed every three years, with 
ongoing monitoring provided to members twice a year.   In 2009 we aligned our key 
output measures closely to the National Indicators used for Local Area Agreements and 
members will be informed of progress annually. The Passenger Transport Policy 
Statement will change in nature and will be incorporated into the broader ITA vision.  
We have been working with colleagues in Nexus and across Tyne and Wear to 
implement the opportunities presented by the Local Transport Act 2008 and the 
transition to the Integrated Transport Authority. We have established 3 new ITA Member 
Working Groups to help the ITA discharge its broader remit. These are the LTP Working 
Group, the Equality and Diversity Working Group and the Bus Strategy Working Group. 
In addition Members have also agreed to establish a Metro Sub Committee. 
We have been closely involved in the review of transport governance across the Tyne 
and Wear City Region which has strengthened the role of the ITA in developing 
transport strategy and policy at the City Region level. 
The role of Standards and Audit Committee has been embedded over the last year. The 
Scrutiny Committee has an agreed annual work programme which has been 
implemented around the goals of the Delivering a Sustainable Transport System . 
Stakeholder consultations, the Community Engagement Strategy, the Corporate 
Communications Plan and close working relations with key partners also ensure that the 
ITA continues to reflect upon its priorities and governance arrangements.  We have 
undertaken a partnership governance review of the Local Transport Plan. 

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in 
accordance with the ITA’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the 
best use of resources  

We measure value for money through the annual financial plan process which reviews 
services and identifies specific actions required to improve value for money which are 
then built into our budget. 
We measure value for money by an annual self-assessment that we submit to the Audit 
Commission (value for money self-assessment and action plan).  We also submit a 
broader self-assessment that looks at non-financial elements – the Audit Commission 
reviews our performance and reports back to us so that we can feed improvement areas 
into the policy plan. 
Service level agreements with the Lead Authority (Newcastle City Council) are in place, 
and regularly monitored, to ensure value for money is being achieved. These are 
reviewed and updated annually. An ITA Officer Statement was submitted to Members in 
July 2009, outlining roles and responsibilities and progress of ITA Officers. 
Performance measurement and management information includes our key output 
measures linking to the set of National Indicators and local performance indicators. 
Targeting for all indicators includes analysis of past performance, comparative 
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performance, priorities identified through consultation and financial plans, and checks 
on achievability.  
Performance is reported to the ITA. 
Performance against the capital programme is also monitored on a regular basis, with 
quarterly reports taken to the ITA.  There is also regular monitoring of the Financial 
Strategy. 
CORE PRINCIPLE 2:  MEMBERS AND OFFICERS HAVE CLEARLY DEFINED 
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILTIES 

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the ITA, scrutiny and 
officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective 
communication 

The roles and responsibilities of members are clearly set out in the ITA’s constitution, 
and are reviewed annually. 
There is a clear scheme of delegation to officers.  
The roles of Scrutiny and Standards and Audit Committees are set out within their 
Terms of Reference.  The role of Standards and Audit Committee was reviewed in 
2008/9 and the new terms of reference are being embedded within the ITA. . 
Membership of the ITA Scrutiny Committee was reviewed in September, 2009 to ensure 
it provided effective measures to hold the ITA to account 
CORE PRINCIPLE 3:  WE PROMOTE HIGH STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND 
BEHAVIOUR 

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 
standards of behaviour for members and staff 

There is a Code of Conduct for Members and Code of Conduct for Employees.   
The Standards and Audit Committee deals with issues of conduct and promotes high 
standards among officers and members. 
There is a Register of Interests and Registers of Gifts and Hospitality for both members 
and officers 
CORE PRINCIPLE 4:  TRANSPARENT DECISION MAKING SUBJECT TO 
SCRUTINY AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a 
scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly 
define how decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to 
manage risks 
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The ITA’s constitution and scheme of delegation are reviewed annually in May. 
Standing Orders were reviewed in May 2009, Financial Regulations have been 
reviewed and considered by members in May 2009. 
Policy and decision making is undertaken by the ITA and its advisory groups. Officers 
from the ITA, the districts and Nexus are starting to develop transport policies for the 
next Local Transport Plan.  
The ITA has developed and maintains an effective scrutiny function which encourages 
constructive challenge and enhances overall performance. The Scrutiny Committee 
consists of members who are not ITA Members, so are able to provide independent 
scrutiny. Scrutiny Committee membership is made up of two Councillors from each of 
the Tyne & Wear Districts, for equality of representation. 
The ITA has a Risk Management Framework in place and maintains a register of its 
strategic risks as well as project risks related to the New Tyne Crossing Project.  The 
ITA uses the risk management resources available within the Lead Authority as 
required. 
The ITA purchases appropriate levels of insurance to minimise financial risks, and self-
insures wherever possible. 

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s 
Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities 

We have established a Standards and Audit Committee which is independent of the ITA 
and scrutiny functions. It includes an independent chair and independent members to 
whom training is provided. 

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful 

The Clerk, Deputy Clerk & Treasurer (S73 of the 1985 Act), Monitoring Officer and other 
senior managers are responsible for advising the ITA and associated committees on 
legal, financial and other policy considerations. 
The ITA is subject to internal and external audit and inspection regimes.  The ITA has an 
internal audit service provided by the Lead Authority.  
The ITA also has a Standards & Audit Committee, whose terms of reference ensure 
probity and further scrutiny of ITA activities. 

Whistle-blowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the public 

The ITA has an agreed whistle-blowing policy. 
There is a corporate complaints procedure in place via the Lead Authority, with Nexus 
having separate procedures in place for managing complaints.  
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CORE PRINCIPLE 5:  DEVELOPING THE CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY OF 
MEMBERS TO BE EFFECTIVE 

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to 
their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training 

The ITA provides members with training and there is induction training for new 
members. 
The ITA also holds a number of policy seminars with Nexus throughout the year to 
enhance member training and understanding.  
ITA Members also undertake site visits, where they are able to see progress in action at 
first hand. For example, site visits have taken place to the Tyne Tunnel, Haymarket 
Metro development and Sunderland Station development. 
CORE PRINCIPLE 6:  ENGAGING WITH LOCAL PEOPLE AND STAKEHOLDERS 

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community 
and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open 
consultation 

Meetings are held in public  
The consultation and involvement strategy sets out how Nexus on behalf of the ITA are 
engaging with their partners and stakeholders. The ITA website contains all Committee 
papers so that the public can access them. The Nexus website encourages people to 
submit questions and offer feedback. 
As part of the broadening remit of the ITA, a communications plan will be reviewed and 
refreshed by the media and PR department of the Lead Authority.. 

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and 
other group working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the 
governance of partnerships (Governing Partnerships: Bridging the Accountability 
Gap, Audit Commission, 2005.) and reflecting these in the Authority’s overall 
governance arrangements 

The ITA takes a lead on the development of the LTP, in partnership with the other 
districts and Nexus.  
We have strengthened partnerships with city region colleagues through the Transport 
Governance Review with ITA officers playing a significant role in the development of an 
emerging City Region Transport Strategy. We continue to work with and liaise with 
individual Local Strategic Partnerships in the districts to raise the profile of the ITA. 
Nexus establishes and monitors its objectives and performance through the Passenger 
Transport Policy Statement and its Annual Performance Plan and 3 year business plan. 
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The ITA has a partnership with TT2 Ltd to operate the existing Tyne Tunnel and the 
construction of a New Tyne Crossing. 
The NESTI partnership is made up from all local authorities across the North East in 
order to provide a smart ticketing transport infrastructure across the region. The ITA is 
leading on this. A collaboration agreement between the ITA and other authorities is 
currently being drawn up. 
SECTION 4:  ANNUAL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE 
FRAMEWORK 
The ITA has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of the Governance Framework including the system of internal control. 
The review is led by the ITA Officer Co-ordination Group and the outcomes are 
reviewed by the Standards and Audit Committee before being considered and approved 
by the ITA.  
The review is informed by : 
(a) The executive managers within the ITA who have responsibility for the 

development and maintenance of the governance environment 
(b) The views of our internal auditors which are regularly reported to Standards and 

Audit Committee through regular progress reports and through the Annual Internal 
Audit Opinion. 

(c) An annual review of the effectiveness of our Internal Audit arrangements (as 
required by Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 
Regulations 2006). 

(d) The views of our external auditors, regularly reported to Standards and Audit 
Committee through regular progress reports and through the Annual Audit and 
Inspection Letter, Annual Governance Report and through regular meetings with 
officers. 

(e) The independent views of inspection agencies. 
(f) The governance and internal control arrangements of our significant partnerships, 

contractors and group arrangements: 
- The Local Transport Plan Partnership (responsible for delivering the Local 

Transport Plan) 
- Nexus (the passenger transport executive responsible for the planning, 

provision and promotion of public transport).  The ITA has appropriate 
representation within Nexus which provides an ongoing source of assurance 

- TT2 Ltd (responsible for the construction and effective operation of the Tyne 
Tunnels and New Tyne Crossing) and internal arrangements in place to 
support and monitor the contract. 

Page 105



(g) The Value for Money Self-Assessment which assesses our performance and the 
services we provide 

(h) The ITA’s Strategic Risk Register, which captures the most significant risks 
associated with delivery of the ITA’s objectives 

(i) The Lead Authority’s own annual review of its Governance Framework  
(j) The views of members through the ongoing work of the Standards and Audit 

Committee and the ITA 
(k) The work of the ITA Officer Co-Ordination Group – this group consists of Lead 

Authority officers who meet monthly to monitor ongoing performance issues and 
governance arrangements 

SECTION 5:  SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
The system of governance (including the system of internal control) can provide only 
reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions 
are authorised and properly recorded, that material errors or irregularities are either 
prevented or would be detected within a timely period and that significant risks 
impacting on the achievement of the ITA’s objectives have been mitigated. 
2008/09 
The following were identified as significant within the 2008/09 Annual Governance Statement 
and have been successfully resolved or have undergone improvements to the extent that they 
did not constitute significant weaknesses during 2009/10: 
 
Information 
Governance 

In 2009/10 work to improve information security, particularly the 
secure disposal of office waste and facilities to encrypt high priority 
mobile devices and e-mails, was completed and in place for the 
majority of the year.  

 
The review did not highlight any new issues as significant weaknesses in 
governance or internal control during 2009/10: 
 

 
SECTION 6:  SIGNIFICANT IMPROVEMENTS NEEDED TO 
GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
The review also identifies: 
(a) Issues that may need significant improvement but which do not constitute 

“significant weaknesses” in our governance and internal control arrangements.  
These are: 
(i) Business Continuity, Planning and Testing:  this is linked to the Lead 

Authority’s arrangements - We continue to make progress with the 
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development of business continuity planning across the organisation but this 
has been slower than expected as a result of needing to take account of 
major organisational changes.  Particular work will be needed on the training 
and validation of plans to ensure they are fit for purpose and owned by the 
services in question.  However, due to a change in personnel the delivery of 
this work may be affected, it will be important that during the transition 
momentum is not lost and managers continue to view this work as important. 

(b) Issues that have improved during 2009/10 and no longer represent significant 
improvements needed to our governance and internal control arrangements.  
These are: 
(i) Scrutiny Processes  
(ii) Action Planning 
(iii) Standards and Audit Committee 
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SECTION 7:  CONCLUSION 
 
We consider the governance and internal control environment operating during 
2008/09 to provide reasonable and objective assurance that any significant risks 
impacting on the achievement of our principal objectives will be identified and 
actions taken to avoid or mitigate their impact.  A number of weaknesses and issues 
have been identified and these are set out in Section 5 above.  Implementing the 
action plans is a priority. 
 
Systems are in place to continually review and improve the governance and internal 
control environment.  A number of additional mid-year checks will be undertaken to 
provide assurance that improvements are being implemented and that the 
assessment is improving. 
 
The annual review has shown that, with the exception of those items listed in 
Section 5, the arrangements are in place and operating as planned. 
We have been advised on the implications of the review by the ITA Officer Co-
ordination Group.  We propose over the coming year to improve our 
governance and internal control arrangements as noted in this statement and 
are satisfied that this will address the need for the required level of 
improvement.  We will monitor the implementation and operation of the 
improvements, as part of our next annual review. 
 
   
Barry Rowland  
Clerk 

Councillor David Wood  
Chair of the ITA 

Paul Woods  
Treasurer and Deputy 
Clerk 

Date:  Date:   Date:   
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TYNE and WEAR INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY 
LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Introduction  

Core Principle 1  

Focussing on the Integrated Transport Authority’s purpose and 
on outcomes for its citizens and service users 

 

Core Principle 2  

Members and officers working together to achieve a common 
purpose with clearly defined functions and roles 

 

Core Principle 3  

Promoting high standards of conduct and behaviour across the 
Integrated Transport Authority 

 

Core Principle 4  

Making transparent decisions which are subject to scrutiny and 
risk management 

 

Core Principle 5  

Developing the capacity of members and officers to be effective 

 

Core Principle 6  

Engaging with local people and stakeholders 
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Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority 
 

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

1. The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) recognises that in order 
to fulfil its purpose and deliver the intended outcomes for its citizens and service 
users it needs to have in place comprehensive arrangements for corporate 
governance and accountability designed to ensure that it operates in an effective, 
efficient and ethical manner. 
 

2. The Cadbury Report (1992) defined corporate governance as “the systems by 
which organisations are directed and controlled”. It identified three fundamental 
principles of corporate governance:- 
• Openness: This ensures that all interested parties are confident in the 

organisation itself. It leads to effective and timely action and lends itself to 
necessary scrutiny. 

• Integrity: This is straightforward dealing reflected in the honesty of the annual 
report in portraying a balanced view. It depends on the integrity of those who 
prepare the report which is a reflection of the professional standards within 
the organisation. 

• Accountability: This is the process whereby individuals are responsible for 
their actions. It is achieved by all parties having a clear understanding of 
those responsibilities, and having clearly defined roles through a robust 
structure. 

 

3. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) adapted the 
Cadbury definition for the local government sector. It defines corporate 
governance as “the systems and processes, the cultures and values, by which 
local government bodies are directed and controlled and through which they 
account to, engage with and, where appropriate, lead their communities”. 
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4. The Nolan Committee (1995) identified seven general principles of conduct which 
should underpin public life and which all holders of public office should practise:- 

 

• Selflessness • Openness 
• Honesty • Integrity 
• Objectivity • Accountability 
• Leadership  

 
5. The Relevant Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001 added four additional 

principles to those identified by the Nolan Committee:- 
• Respect for others 
• Duty to uphold the law 
• Stewardship (using resources prudently) 
• Personal judgement 

6. Building on these principles the Good Governance Standard for Public Services 
(2004) set out six core principles that should underpin the governance 
arrangements of all public bodies. 

 

7. In 2007 CIPFA published a Framework for Delivering Corporate Governance in 
Local Government to assist Authorities to review their governance arrangements 
and to highlight any gaps. It adapts the six core principles of good governance for 
the local government sector and recommends that all Authorities should comply 
with them. 

 

8. The ITA believes that effective corporate governance is achieved by:- 
•  putting in place sound control systems and processes 
• regular checking to make sure those systems and processes are working 

in practice 
• reviewing those control systems and processes at least annually 

 

9. This Code demonstrates how the ITA does this in practice and how it complies 
with each of the six principles. These are:- 

Page 111



i) Focusing on the ITA’s purpose and on outcomes for its Tyne and Wear 
residents and service users 

ii) Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles 

iii) Promoting high standards of conduct and behaviour across the ITA 
iv) Making transparent decisions which are subject to scrutiny and risk 

management 
v) Developing the capacity of members and officers to be effective 
vi) Engaging with local people and stakeholders 
 

10. The Code brings together in one document all the governance and accountability 
arrangements which the ITA currently has in place. 

 

11.  The Code will be reviewed and updated annually. 
 

12.  As part of the annual accounts process, the ITA is required to conduct an annual 
review of its governance arrangements, including its system of internal controls, 
and to publish a statement of that review known as the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS), within the Annual Report and Accounts.  The purpose of the 
AGS is to represent how the governance arrangements operated in each 
financial year, and to highlight significant improvements needed. The Code will 
facilitate the ITA’s review of its corporate governance arrangements for the 
purposes of the AGS. 

 

This Local Code of Corporate Governance was approved by the ITA on 29 June 
2009.
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CORE PRINCIPLE 1 – Purpose and Outcomes 

 
Core Principle 1 – Focusing on the purpose of the Tyne and Wear 
Integrated Transport Authority and on outcomes for the community and 
implementing a vision for the area 
Summary: Good governance helps to ensure that we fulfill our purpose and achieve the 
intended outcomes for our citizens and service users and that we operate in an effective, 
efficient, economic and ethical manner. We have therefore developed a clear vision of our 
purpose and intended outcomes which are communicated both within the ITA and to external 
stakeholders. Our Passenger Transport Policy Statement sets out our vision and values and 
the intended outcomes for local people. It is used as a basis for corporate and service 
planning. 
 

Exercising strategic leadership by developing and clearly communicating the ITA’s 
purpose and vision and its intended outcome for citizens and service users 
Evidence of compliance 
� Passenger Transport Policy Statement - published thee yearly and reviewed annually 

by Members - sets out ITA priorities and targets for action in the coming year and 
records its key achievements in the preceding year providing the context for service 
delivery throughout the year and the following two years 

� ITA Vision Statement March 2009 
� Emerging ITA Vision and High level objectives 
� Annual Review and Update of ITA constitutional documents 
� ITA Key Output Measures aligned with Multi-Area Agreement and Local  Area 
Agreement Indicators 
� ITA Officer Statement July 2009 
� ITA Signing of Nottingham Declaration September 2009 
� ITA input on emerging City Region Transport Strategy 
� ITA Terms of Reference for Working Groups 
� NESTI Collaboration Agreement 
� Consultation Panel on the Duty to Involve 
� Annual Performance Plan  
� Community Engagement Strategy 
� Corporate Communications Plan 
� Policy seminars  
� Market research reports  
� Consultation and Involvement Policy/Strategy  
� Annual Performance Plan 
� Annual Report and Accounts 
� Annual Governance Statement 
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Areas for Further Improvement 
� Update and refresh the ITA website (Spring 2010) 
� Revise and refresh ITA Officer Statement (July 10) 
 
Ensuring that users receive a high quality of service whether directly, or in 
partnership, or by commissioning 
Evidence of compliance 
� Passenger Transport Policy Statement  
� Annual Investment Strategy 
� Annual Governance Statement  
� Annual Performance Plan 
� Policy seminars  
� Market research reports  
� Household survey 
� Bus Strategy consultations 
� Consultation and Involvement Policy/Strategy  
� Community Engagement Strategy 
� Local Transport Plan  
� Bus Strategy 
� Bus Network Development 
� Annual audits - internal and external  
� Nexus Metro Passenger Charter 
� Stakeholder workshops  
� Nexus, Tyne Tunnels and ITA complaints procedures 
� Access For all  
� Policy work programme 
� Policy briefings  
� Response to consultations 
� Benchmarking against other Integrated Transport Authorities and Passenger Transport 
Executives  
� Performance Reports to ITA on Metro performance 
� Equality and Diversity Policy 
 
Areas for Further Improvement 
� Develop and improve partnership and project management arrangements 
� Developing relationships with district local strategic partnerships 
� Developing plans to tackle climate change causes and impacts 
� Implement findings of City Region Transport Governance Review 
� Website development 
 
Ensuring that the ITA makes best use of resources and that tax payers and service 
users receive excellent value for money 
Evidence of compliance 
� Annual Performance Plan 
� Annual audits - internal and external  
� PTEG and Nova International Business Improvement Groups  
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� Major project and cross-cutting business cases 
� Efficiency statements (forward and backward looking) 
� Annual Treasury and Investment Strategy Statement 
� Newcastle City Council procurement documents 
� Nexus business reviews 
� Capital financing records, indicating sources of external funding 
� Risk Management Framework  
� Scrutiny and ITA Scrutiny Advisory Committees 
� Use of Resources Value for Money Self Assessment  
� Annual Financial Strategy for the next 3 years 
� Medium Term Plan 
� Regular monitoring against plan 
� Annual budget process 
� Key output measures 
 
Areas for Further Improvement 
� Stakeholder workshops and briefings 
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CORE PRINCIPLE 2 – Members and officers working together 
 
 
Core Principle 2 – Members and officers working together to achieve a 
common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles 
Summary: Elected members are collectively responsible for the governance of the ITA. The 
ITA is a joint authority and comprises sixteen representatives of the five local authorities in 
the (former) metropolitan county of Tyne and Wear.  Those representatives must be 
members of those five authorities and Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 1985 (as 
amended from 1 April 2006) specifies the numbers to be as follows: 

� Newcastle     4  
� Sunderland    4  
� Gateshead    3  
� North Tyneside   3  
� South Tyneside   2 

The Local Government Act 2000 introduced a number of changes to the way in which local 
authorities carry out their work. While major innovations, such as the change to cabinet-style 
government, do not apply to the ITA, a number of improvements, such as dispensing with the 
committees such as those that formerly dealt with the Tyne Tunnel and Passenger Services, 
and replacing them with leading members acting as spokespersons for various portfolios, 
have been made. These changes bring the operating procedures of the ITA more closely in 
line with those of its five constituent councils. 
The ITA has a Scrutiny Committee; the purpose of this body is to help ensure the ITA 
delivers its objectives. Scrutiny can do this by providing a mechanism for the ITA decisions 
and policies to be reviewed and examined in order to contribute to service improvement and 
ensuring value for money. 
The ITA also has a Standards and Audit Committee, whose terms of reference ensure 
probity and further scrutiny of ITA activities. The Committee consists of 5 members from the 
ITA, and a further 4 independent members ensuring greater objectivity. 
The ITA recently established 3 new working groups to help advise it in its discharge of its 
broader remit. These working groups are the LTP Working Group, the Equality and Diversity 
Working Group and the Bus Strategy Working Group. Each has a developed Terms of 
Reference. In addition, the ITA has recently agreed to set up a Metro Sub Committee. 
The Clerk, Deputy Clerk / Treasurer (S73 of the 1985 Act), Monitoring Officer and other 
senior managers of the Lead Authority (Newcastle City Council) are responsible for advising 
the ITA and associated committees on legal, financial and other policy considerations. 
Ensuring effective leadership throughout the ITA and being clear about the roles and 
responsibilities of its members and officers and of the scrutiny function 
Evidence of compliance 
� Annual Review and Update of the ITA constitutional documents (particularly terms of 

reference of each committee and delegations to officers) reported to Annual General 
Meeting 

� Delegations to Officers  
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� Job Descriptions and Person Specifications (Director General of Nexus), Clerk and 
Deputy, etc) 

� Standing Orders  
� Development and refresh of Equality and Diversity Policy 
� Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference, Annual Report to the ITA and Work 

Programme 
� Standards and Audit Committee Terms of Reference, Annual Report to the ITA and 

Work Programme 
� Member Code of Conduct 
� Employee Code of Conduct (inc. Lead Authority Code) 
� Service Level Agreement between the ITA and the Lead Authority 
� Independent Review of Corporate Governance 
 
Areas for Further Improvement 
� Update Employee Code of Conduct when a statutory code is published 
 
Ensuring that a constructive working relationship exists between ITA Members and 
Officers and that the responsibilities of members and officers are carried out to a high 
standard 
Evidence of compliance 
� Member Code of Conduct 
� Employee Code of Conduct (inc. Lead Authority Code) 
� ITA meetings 
� ITA Working Groups 
� ITA Scrutiny Committee meetings 
� ITA Standards and Audit Committee meetings 
� Metro Sub Committee 
� ITA Policy Seminars 
� Consultation and Involvement Strategy  
� Member induction process 
� ITA Officer Statement 
� Member training and briefing sessions 
� Policy Work Programme 
 
Areas for Further Improvement 
� Update Employee Code of Conduct when a statutory code is published 
� Consider role of ITA, sub committees or lead portfolio roles. 
 
Ensuring relationships between the ITA, its partners and the public are clear so that 
each knows what to expect of the other 
Evidence of compliance 
� ITA Vision Statement March 2009 
� ITA Policy Statement 
� Complaints System 
� Nexus Metro Passenger Charter 
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� Passenger Transport Policy statement 
� Community Engagement Strategy 
� ITA meetings 
� ITA Working Groups 
� New Tyne Crossing communication strategy 
� Stakeholder consultations 
� ITA Policy Seminars 
� Member and Employee Codes of Conduct 
� Independent Remuneration Panel / Members Allowance Scheme 
� Service Level Agreements with Lead Authority 
� ITA Officer Statement 
� City Region Transport Strategy and City Region Transport Sub Group 
� New Tyne Crossing Project Agreement 
� Tyne and Wear Leaders / Treasurers groups 
� ITA Officer & Nexus Liaison groups 
 
Areas for Further Improvement 
� Embed LSP engagement 
� Update and refresh the ITA website (Summer 2010) 
� Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 
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CORE PRINCIPLE 3 – Conduct and Behaviour 
 
 
Core Principle 3 – Promoting values for the ITA and demonstrating the 
values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct 
and behaviour 
 
Summary: We recognise that good governance is underpinned by shared values and 
demonstrated in the behaviour of our members and staff. Our values (the way in which we 
will work for the community in pursuing our aims) are set out in our Policy Statement. The 
standards of conduct and behaviour we expect of members and officers are clearly set out in 
the Member and Employee Codes of Conduct. This is supported by training programmes for 
both members and staff. 
 
Ensuring ITA members and officers exercise leadership by behaving in ways that 
exemplify high standards of conduct and effective governance 
Evidence of compliance 
� Performance Plan 
� Members Handbook  
� Employee Contracts of Employment 
� Member and Employee Codes of Conduct  (inc. Lead Authority Codes) 
� Protocol for Dealing with Complaints Against Councillors 
� Policy for the Confidential Reporting of Concerns (“Whistleblowing Policy”) 
� Standing Orders  and Officer Delegations 
� Members Training Programme 
� Freedom of Information Procedures 
� Standards and Audit Committee Terms of Reference include responsibility for 

promoting high standards of conduct across the ITA  
� Standards and Audit Committee Annual Report to the ITA and inclusion within Annual 

Report and Accounts 
� Financial Regulations 
 
Ensuring that organisational values are put into practice and are effective 
Evidence of compliance 
� Member Training Programme 
� Standing Orders  and Officer Delegations 
� Financial Regulations 
� Standards and Audit Committee Terms of Reference and agendas 
� Standards and Audit Committee Terms of Reference include responsibility for 

promoting high standards of conduct across the ITA  
� Standards and Audit Committee Annual Report to the ITA and inclusion within Annual 

Report and Accounts 
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� Procedures in place for dealing with complaints against members - ITA Protocol  
� Register of interests and register of gifts and hospitality for both members and 

employees (inc. lead authority) 
� Nexus Metro Passenger Charter 
� Internal Audit work programme 
� Monitoring Officer role 
� Member Code of Conduct 
� Employee Code of Conduct (inc. Lead Authority Code) 
� Nexus Strategies 
� Strengthening the Audit function of the Standards and Audit Committee by increased 

relevant membership 
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CORE PRINCIPLE 4 – Decision Making 

 
Core Principle 4 – Taking informed and transparent decisions which are 
subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk  
Summary: We recognise that all ITA decisions are potentially subject to legal challenge and 
that we need to be able to successfully defend such challenges. In order to do so we must be 
able to demonstrate that decision makers followed a proper process, the decision was 
properly documented and was taken having regard to all relevant considerations whilst 
ignoring any irrelevant considerations. Members and officers must therefore have all relevant 
information before them, including the outcome of any constructive scrutiny and a detailed 
assessment of the risks to ensure that ITA resources are used legally and efficiently. 
Being rigorous and transparent about how decisions are taken and listening and 
acting on the outcome of constructive scrutiny 
Evidence of compliance 
� ITA meetings 
� ITA Working groups advising full ITA 
� ITA Policy Seminars 
� Policy Work Programme 
� The ITA has appointed a Scrutiny Committee – it was first appointed by the ITA on 2 

October 2003. Establishing the new committee of the ITA was a response to the 
requests of councillors who wished to extend the scrutiny arrangements for the ITA 

� Agendas and minutes of Scrutiny Committee  
� Scrutiny Committee Annual Work Programme 
� Scrutiny Annual Report to ITA 
� Standards and Audit Committee Terms of Reference include responsibility for 

promoting high standards of conduct across the ITA  
� Standards and Audit Committee Annual Report to the ITA and inclusion within Annual 

Report and Accounts 
 
Having good quality information, advice and support to ensure that services are 
delivered effectively and are what the community wants/needs 
Evidence of compliance 
� Reports to ITA / Scrutiny / Standards and Audit committees and LTP, Bus Strategy and 
Equality and Diversity Working Groups 
� Delegation to Officers / Officer Co-ordination Group meetings 
� Lead Authority policies and procedures 
� ITA Policy Seminars 
� Complaints procedures 
� Communication strategies (Nexus and New Tyne Crossing) 
� Stakeholder consultations 
� Specific legal and financial input sections to ITA reports 
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Ensuring that an effective risk management system is in place 
Evidence of compliance 
� Risk Management Framework 
� Strategic Risk Register 
� Performance and Risk Monitoring report to ITA  
� Standards and Audit Committee Terms of Reference  
� Standards and Audit Committee Annual Report to the ITA and inclusion  within 
Annual Report and Accounts 
� Member training sessions 
 
Using their legal powers to the full benefit of the citizens and communities in their 
area 
Evidence of compliance 
� S73 responsibilities 
� Role of Monitoring Officer and Head of Legal Services 
� Stakeholder consultations 
� Nexus Metro Passenger Charter 
� Complaints  against members Protocol 
� Members induction  
� Member training 
� ITA Work Programme 
� Delegation to Officers  
� Ongoing monitoring of policy 
� Use of ‘well-being powers’ for the NESTI project 
� ITA Report Template 
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CORE PRINCIPLE 5 – Effective members and officers 
 
Core Principle 5 – Developing the capacity of members and officers to be 
effective 
Summary: Authorities need people with the right skills to direct and control them. The ITA is 
serviced by officers from the Lead Authority. In addition, Nexus officers work closely with the 
Lead Authority. 
Making sure that members and officers have the skills, knowledge, experience and 
resources they need to perform well in their roles 
Evidence of compliance 
� Members Induction and Training 
� Lead Authority and Nexus training programmes 
� Policy briefings 
� Officer job descriptions and person specifications 
� Regular finance training for members 
� Member and officer attendance at conferences, etc 
 
Developing the capability of people with governance responsibilities and evaluating 
their performance, as individuals and as a group 
Evidence of compliance 
� Member training 
� Lead Authority / Nexus personal development plans 
� Internal and external audit processes 
� Benchmarking and knowledge sharing with other ITAs 
 
Encouraging new talent for membership of the ITA so that best use can be made of 
individuals’ skills and resources in balancing continuity and renewal 
 
Evidence of compliance 
� Member and officer training  
� ITA, ITA Standards and Audit Committee and ITA Scrutiny Advisory Committees – 

increases in membership 
� Complaints and comments procedures 
� ITA Policy Seminars 
� Lead Authority officer pool 
� Equality and Diversity Working Group  
� Consultation and Involvement strategy  
� Work with Access For All 
 

Page 123



 
 

Page 124



 
CORE PRINCIPLE 6 – Local Engagement 

 
Core Principle 6 – Engaging with local people and stakeholders to ensure 
robust public accountability 
Summary: Nexus has arrangements in place for consulting with service users, key 
stakeholders and partners this is set out in the Consultation and Involvement Policy Strategy 
to help ensure that key messages about services are taken into account. There is a separate 
communications plan to ensure that key messages are communicated to stakeholders and 
other target audiences. 
Exercising leadership through a robust scrutiny function which effectively engages 
local people and all local institutional stakeholders, including partnerships, and 
develops constructive accountability relationships  
Evidence of compliance 
� ITA agendas and minutes 
� Scrutiny Committee 
� Standards and Audit Committee 
� LTP, Bus Strategy and Equality and Diversity Working Groups 
� Annual Performance Plan 
� Annual Governance Statement 
� Relationship with internal and external auditors 
� ITA Policy Seminars 
� Consultation and Involvement Strategy  
� LTP 3 development 
� Consultation on ITA Vision 
� Nexus Passenger Panel 
� Complaints and comments systems 
� Scrutiny Committee Annual reports to ITA on scrutiny function - included in Annual 

Report and Accounts  
� Reports on scrutiny work programme 
� Reports to the ITA on outcome of call-in of decisions under the scrutiny process 
� Lead Authority delegated decisions system 
� Household Survey 
� Focus Groups as necessary 
� Citizen Panel 
� Links with local strategic partnerships 
 
Taking an active and planned approach to dialogue with and accountability to the 
public to ensure effective and appropriate service delivery whether directly by the 
authority, in partnership or by commissioning 
Evidence of compliance 
� Positive relationship with the Audit Commission 
� Positive Relationship with the Tyne and Wear Districts through the Local Transport Plan 

group 
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� Positive relationship with central government departments e.g. Department for 
Communities and Local Government and the Treasury 

� Website  
� Publication of agendas and minutes of meetings 
� Annual Performance Plan 
� Consultation And Involvement Strategy  
� Communications Plan 
� Work with Access for All 
� Equality and Diversity Review Sub group 
� Annual Report and Accounts 
� Compliance with Freedom of Information Act 2000 – information requests are monitored 

to ensure that requests are responded to within the statutory timescales 
 
Making best use of human resources by taking an active and planned approach to 
meet responsibility to staff 
Evidence of compliance 
� Lead Authority / Nexus HR policies and procedures 
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APPENDIX C 
CIPFA CRITERIA FOR SIGNFICANT INTERNALCONTROL ISSUES 

 - 35 -  

A single definition of a significant internal control issue is not possible.  Authorities will need 
to exercise judgement in deciding whether or not a particular issue should be regarded as 
falling into this category. 
 
Factors which may be helpful in exercising that judgement include: 
 

1. The issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal objective; 
 

2. The issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be resolved, 
or has resulted in a significant diversion of resources from another aspect of the 
business; 

 
3. The issue has led to a material impact on the accounts; 

 
4. The audit committee, or equivalent, has advised that it should be significant for this 

purpose; 
 

5. The Head of Internal Audit has reported on it as significant, for this purpose, in the 
annual opinion on the internal control environment; 

 
6. The issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has seriously 

damaged the reputation of the organisation; 
 

7. The issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial Officer 
and/or the Monitoring Officer. 
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